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ASX APPENDIX 4E

The following information for Genetic Technologiesnited (“GTG” and the “Company”) is provided undesting Rule
4.3A of the Listing Rules of the Australian SedestExchange (“ASX”). The financial informationgpided in this
Appendix 4E covers the consolidated Group, compgisienetic Technologies Limited (the parent enaiy)l all entities
that the Company controlled from time to time dgrthe year and at the reporting date (30 June 201§ date of this

Appendix 4E i29 August 2017.

1. The reporting period covers the financial year eréfe June 2017 (“Reporting Period”).

The previous corresponding period is the finangalr ended 30 June 2016 (“Previous Period”).

2. Results for announcement to the Market:

Reporting Period

Movement from Previous Period

2.1 | Consolidated revenue from $518.506 Decreased by Decreased by
ordinary activities ’ $606,628 54.0%

2.2 | Consolidated loss from ordinary $(8,403,826) Deﬂcs:fr)galsgg by Decreased by
activities after tax attributable to ' 0.7%
Members of the Company

2.3 | Consolidated loss attributable $(8,403,826) Deﬂcs:fr)galsgg by Decreased by
to Members of the Company ' 0.7%

2.4 | No dividends were paid during the Reportingdéenor are any proposed.

2.5 | There is no record date for determining divilentittements.

2.6 | All matters pertaining to the figures abovedascribed elsewhere in this Appendix 4E.

3. The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Indontae consolidated Group covering the Reportiagdd and

the Previous Period is provided in the attacheRep

4. The Consolidated Balance Sheet for the consolidatedp covering the Reporting Period and the Pusvi®eriod is

provided in the attached Report.

5. The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for theaaated Group covering the Reporting PeriodthadPrevious
Period is provided in the attached Report.

6. The Statement of Changes in Equity Statement cayéhnie Reporting Period and the Previous Perigaagided in

the attached Report

7.  No dividends were paid during the Reporting Pedothe Previous Period, nor are any proposed tag alate of this

Appendix 4E.

8. The Company does not have a Dividend Reinvestriantd? at the date of this Appendix 4E.

9. The consolidated net tangible assets as at thefehd Reporting Period were 0.43 cents per share.

The corresponding figure as at the end of the BusvPeriod was 0.66 cents per share.

10. During the Reporting Period the Group did not gaifose control of any entities.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the conatdidl Group does not hold investments in associates.

Apart from the information contained in the attatieénancial Report and elsewhere in this Appenéixthere is no
other significant information needed by an investommake an informed assessment of the Companyédial
performance and financial position as at the RempRate.

The Company is not a foreign entity.

A commentary on the Company’s financial resigighe year ended 30 June 2017 has been providbe section
entitledOperating Results for the Year of the attached Report.

The financial information contained in this IPninary Final Report is based on the attached Rdpothe year ended
30 June 2017 which has been audited by the Compangitor PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Not applicable.

This Preliminary Final Report is based on ant®that have been audited. The independentoasidéport to be
included in the Annual Report of the Company weél ubject to an emphasis of matter paragraph eghrds the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going conceefefr Note 2(a) Going concern).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors submit their Report for the year ehg@ June 2017.

DIRECTORS

The names and details of the Directors of Genedhmologies Limited who held office during the 20ihancial year and
until the date of this Report are stated belowleskotherwise stated the following persons werzttirs during the whole
of the financial year and up to the date of thgore

Directors in office as at the date of this Report

Dr Malcolm R. Brandon, BScAgr, PhD(Non-Executive)

Dr Brandon was appointed to the Board on 5 Oct@086 and as its Chairman on 28 November 2012. ddeotier 40
years’ experience in commercially focused researah development and in building successful companigich have
commercialised a wide range of Australian and im@gonal technologies. Dr Brandon is currently Mging Director of
genetics and artificial animal breeding companyn€ldnternational which uses cloning technologiepreserve the
genetics of elite animals.

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive)

Mr Buccilli was appointed to the Board in June 208 joined the Company in June 2014 as Chief Eiaa@fficer. In
November 2014, he was appointed to the positiolCluef Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officand was
subsequently appointed Chief Executive Officerébtary 2015.

Mr Buccilli has more than 35 years of senior managy@ experience in the financial services, contrgand recruitment,
property and retail industries in Australia andth8. He has held senior management positionshiithchip corporations
such as General Electric (‘GE”), Computer ScienogpGration, Coles Myer and Challenger Limited. Whdt GE, Mr

Buccilli was seconded to the U.S., where he wouiketthe GE Capital Headquarters located in Stam@andnecticut. He
brings to the Board extensive financial, corpogateernance, commercial and fund raising experience.

Dr Paul A. Kasian, PhD, MBA, GAICD (Non-Executive)

Dr Kasian was appointed to the Board on 12 Dece2dt8. He brings to the Board a combination of gigeein strategic
business leadership and biotech investment giving & deep understanding on key value drivers fonpamies in
generating shareholder value. He is an experieexecutive director with demonstrated domestic atetmational success
in funds management, encompassing senior leadeirsbgstment and risk roles.

Dr Kasian has held senior leadership positions mumber of investment groups, and has significantd$ management
experience in Australia leading investment in thalthhcare and life sciences sector. He holds aiflicrobiology and a
Master of Business Administration, both from theiugrsity of Melbourne, and is a Graduate Membethef Australian
Institute of Company Directors. Dr Kasian is alsdNan-Executive Director of IODM Limited (ASX: IOD)ELK
OrthoBiologics and Blockchain Global Limited.

Mr Grahame Leonard AM, BA (Hons), LLB, CA, CPA, FAICD (Dip), AFAIMNon-Executive)

Mr Leonard was appointed to the Board on 29 Noverib&3 and also serves as Chairman of the Compamnylg
Committee. He is a qualified Lawyer and Charteredduntant. He brings over 35 years’ experiencbéncorporate
world including Lysaght (BHP), BTR Nylex and Thedrhpson Corporation. His numerous community position
include former Commissioner, Victorian Multiculti@ommission, former Chair, Victorian GovernmentIiaith
Advisory Group and former Director of Transparehagrnational Australia, (the Australian arm of theernational
anti-corruption watchdog).

Dr Lindsay Wakefield, MBBS (Non-Executive)

Dr Wakefield was appointed to the Board on 24 Sepée 2014 and also serves as Chairman of the Corspan
Remuneration Committee. Dr Wakefield started 8afetn 1985. In 1993 he left medicine to becomefulitme CEO of
the Company. Over the next 25 years, Safetech heeeafarce in the Australian material handling aiftthdy equipment
market, designing and manufacturing a wide rangénadistrial products. In 2006, Safetech was awarthed Telstra
Australian National Business of the Year.

In 2013, Safetech merged to become STS (Safetemimahi Solutions) which is Australia’s largest maotifeer and
supplier of dock equipment, freight hoists and @ustifting solutions. Dr Wakefield continues as Maing Director of
STS and has been a keen Biotech investor for pagt&'s, often at a mezzanine level.

3
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Company Secretary as at the date of this Report

Kevin Fischer, CPA, AGIA, ACIS, B. Com

Mr Fischer was appointed Company Secretary on Jgida 2016 following his appointment as Chief Fioial Officer
on November 2, 2015. He has over ten years’ expegién senior finance roles with successful diajoampanies,
such as QIAGEN and Cellestis. Mr Fischer is a Cind €hartered Secretary who has significant expegien the
financial management and reporting for internati@mperations

Interests in the shares and options of the Compargnd related bodies corporate
As at the date of this Report, the following Dimgsthold an indirect beneficial interest in therskaf the Company:

Mr Grahame Leonard AM 6,000,000 shares
Dr Paul Kasian 256,410 shares
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 7,754,763 shares

Dr Wakefield also has a direct interest in 570,588res and an indirect interest in 8,333,333 optibir Buccilli has a
direct interest in 14,236,111 options granted o binder the Employee Share Option scheme.

Apart from the above, no Director holds any intemeshe shares and options of the Company asatdte of this Report.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Corporate structure

Genetic Technologies Limited is a public companyitid by shares that is incorporated and domidiletjustralia. The
Company has prepared a consolidated financial répmrporating the entities that it controlled idgrthe financial year,
which are outlined in the following illustration tife Group’s corporate structure as at the date®Report:

Genetic Technologies Limited

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Genetic
GeneType RareCellect GeneType Technologies Phenogen GeneType
Corporation Pty. Ltd. Pty. Ltd. Corporation Sciences Inc. AG
Pty. Ltd.

On 30 June 2017, the dormant subsidiary, GeneTyp&as placed into members’ voluntary liquidation.

Group overview

Genetic Technologies Limited is a molecular diagjossompany that offers predictive testing an@sssient tools to help
physicians proactively manage women’s health. Tom@any's lead product, BREVAGeInS®, is a clinically validated
risk assessment test for non-hereditary breasecamd is first in its class. BREVAGaIns® improves upon the predictive
power of the first generation BREVAGEhtest and is designed to facilitate better inforrmdedisions about breast cancer
screening and preventive treatment plans. BREVAGESR expands the application of BREVAG&nfrom Caucasian
women to include African-Americans and Hispanicsl & directed towards women aged 35 years or alwgwe have not
had breast cancer and have one or more risk fdototgveloping breast cancer.

The Company has successfully launched the firsergéion BREVAGeR test across the U.S. via its U.S. subsidiary
Phenogen Sciences Inc. and the addition of BREVAGER, launched in October 2014, significantly exparids
applicable market. The Company markets BREVA@e&s® to healthcare professionals in comprehensivesbrieaalth
care and imaging centres, as well as to obstetsfdgnecologists (OBGYNSs) and breast cancer risksssnent specialists
(such as breast surgeons).

Principal activities

The principal activity of the entities within therdBip during the financial year was the provisionnoblecular risk
assessment for cancer.

There were no significant changes in the natutbeofsroup’s activities during the financial year.

Operating Result

The operating result for the year is directly retilee of the Company’s concentrated focus on thgaesion of its genetic
testing business, with emphasis on the sale amdbdiion of the BREVAGeplus® breast cancer risk test in the U.S.
through its wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary, Phenogeiences Inc.

During the 2017 financial year, Genetic Technolsdiénited and its subsidiaries generated conse@igross revenues
from continuing operations, excluding other revenoie approximately $0.5 million compared to $0.8llion in the
preceding year. This differential is directly #ntitable to a decrease in the overall sales OBBREVAGemlus® tests.

Overheads have decreased by approximately $0.@mibmpared with 2016. The combined areas ahgélinarketing,
administration (excluding net foreign currency &8s licensing and operations totalled $8 million the year compared
with $8.9 million for 2016. This overall reductian overheads is primarily attributable to a deseedn selling &
marketing costs of $0.5 million, resulting from uedd employee benefits and public relations expemgiand a decrease
in laboratory and research & development costdd illion resulting from reduced employee besédind legal, patent
& licensing expenditure, all of which reflect thegming commitment to effectively manage overheashdmg.

The loss for the year of $8.4 million includes a5%@illion expense for the impairment of the intifeyassets (2016: Nil).
5
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)
Dividends and distributions

No dividends have been paid since the end of theiqurs financial year, nor have the Directors rememded that any
dividend be paid.

Capital raising

During the year the Company issued 720,000,000hargishares increasing contributed equity by apprately $6.8
million after transaction costs. Refer note 19.

Review of financial condition

Capital structure

As at the date of this Report, the Company hadad b 2,435,282,724 fully paid ordinary sharesissue, all of which
were listed on the Australian Securities Exchaagé, on the Nasdaq Capital Market in the U.S. veaGbmpany’'s ADRs
(American Depositary Receipts). Also at that ditere were 75,102,778 unissued ordinary shardei@ompany under
option. As at the date of this Report, no ordirgrgtres were subject to escrow.

Treasury and related policies
The Company has in place a cash management palimhvollows industry accepted leading practiceilyesting the

Company’s cash assets in a range of short to metkam interest-bearing deposits with appropriatelgd financial
institutions.

Cash provided by operations

During the financial year, the consolidated nehoasgtflows used in operations was approximatel $6illion. This is a
$0.9 million improvement compared to the prior fin&l year. Overall, the Group’s consolidated cas$ets decreased by
approximately $0.2 million during the 2017 finargiaar primarily to support ongoing operations.

Liquidity and funding

As at 30 June 2017, the Company also had corporedit card facilities with National Australia Bahkmited and Bank
of America, which had total credit limits of $15000 and $156,128, respectively. As at that datétal liability
outstanding in respect of these credit card faslitvas $12,428. Cash and cash equivalents, a8 atr® 2017 was
$10,988,255.

Audit Report
The Company’s auditor has included an “emphasimaifer” paragraph in the Audit Report relatinghe Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern (refer N&(@) Going concern).

Impairment of Assets

Slow growth rates in the market adoption of BREVAGerplus® breast cancer risk assessment test contributing to
net losses represented an impairment triggeringntene the first half of the year. The Group perfednan
impairment assessment, which resulted in a non-taphirment of $544,694 being recognised at 31 Dibes
2016. The Company impairs assets in accordance AitBB 136 (IAS 36) Impairment of Assets. This stardd
prescribes that an impairment loss must be recedrifsan assets carrying value exceeds its recbkesmount
(refer Note 2 for more details). Management preparernal valuations of each asset annually (aenfrequently
should indicators of impairment be identified). Thaluations are reviewed and consideration is gigento
whether there are indicators of impairment whicluldavarrant impairment testing

Impairment testing conducted at 30 June 2017 stppaanagement’s assessment that the intangible sissgd
remain fully impaired at year end. Details of tihegpairment testing conducted are included in notdolthese
accounts
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)

Significant changes in the state of affairs

During the year the Company's strategy was to famughe expansion of its cancer diagnostic framch&gnificant
changes in the state of affairs of the group duitiegfinancial year were as follows:

* Contributed equity increased by $ 7,110,049 to%382,625 as the result of a private share placeamehrebate
of a facility fee on previously issued shares. Det# the changes in contributed equity are dsetbin note 19 to
the financial statements.

e« On 17 February 2017, the Company granted a tot223%0,000 options over ordinary shares in the fizom to
certain Key Management Personnel (21,750,000 aptiand US employees (1,000,000 options). The aption
which were granted at nil consideration, entitle ltolders to acquire one ordinary share, at aesiikce of $0.01
at any time up to, and including 16 February 2@2bject to certain vesting conditions.

There were no other significant changes in the sthaffairs that are not described elsewhereiinReport.

Significant events after balance date

There have been no significant events which haveroed after balance date.

Business strategy, future developments and prospsct

The repositioning and repricing of BREVAG#us® along with the additions of a Colorectal CanceskRissessment test
and launch of a research agreement with a topiiitution were key Company initiatives in FY17hi§ refined
commercial strategy was aimed at achieving margeg¢@tance and physician adoption of the BREVASA&s® breast
cancer risk assessment test in the U.S. throughwhiglly owned U.S. subsidiary, Phenogen Sciences 8everal
modifications to BREVAGeplus® were implemented in December 2016, demonstratiagCiompany’s commitment to
continually improving the underlying scientific leasf the test. The enhancements simplified the-idata requirement by
the physician and aligns the product more firmlyhwd.S. clinical guidelines, in particular, the téu States Preventative
Services Task Force (USPSTF) recommendation statesnechemoprevention of breast cancer. Furthef, April 2017,
the Company transitioned from a traditional reinsleanent system through insurance providers to atgiggient self-pay
program in an attempt to simplify the BREVAGams® billing and collections process. Converting to eedi pay
relationship with patients provides economic armatess certainty to the transaction for the heakhpeovider and most
importantly, the patienfAn enhanced medical affairs presence has beerokieyplementing these changes, and together
with a refined marketing message, with a focus ealth care provider education, our relationshiphwihysicians
continues to strengthen.

The execution of an exclusive worldwide licenseeagrent in November 2016, with The University of béelrne, for
the development and commercialisation of a novkdreotal cancer risk assessment test provides ¢mep@ny with an
opportunity to enhance its pipeline of risk assesgnproducts. The execution of an investigatoriatétd research
Agreement with The Ohio State University, in Jud2 is reflective of the growing awareness of @m@mpany’s
expertise in SNP-based risk assessment as it seelsliver on its core mission of becoming a leaidethe cancer
genomics focused diagnostics industry.

Key focus areas for the upcoming year include:
« ongoing enhancement of tiBREVAGemlus® breast cancer risk assessment test,
« continued development of the Colorectal cancerasgessment test,
e progress existing collaborative research prograhitevsourcing further collaborative opportunitieait
enhance the Company’s expertise and profile in 8Ad#d risk assessment,
« undertake a comprehensive strategic review, erglerwide range of strategic alternatives,
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)

Legal matters
There are no legal matters of a material natusevaunt affecting the Company as at the date oRbfsort.

Earnings / (loss) per share 2017 2016
Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents per share) (0.40) (0.49)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (cents peeshar (0.40) (0.49)

Material business risks

The Group operates in the biotechnology sectory iAmestment in this sector is considered to bé higk in nature. The
Group is subject to normal business risks including not limited to, exchange rate fluctuatiots tondition, liquidity
and volatility of global securities markets; cham@®e government policy and legislation (particitar Australia and the
U.S.); and potential litigation, all of which aagdely outside the control of the Company’'s Board Klanagement. Other
risks that are more specific to the Company, tiséosén which it operates and its underlying bussactivities include:

Financial risk - With the exception of the year ended 30 June 2BELCompany has incurred operating losses inyever
year of its existence. As at 30 June 2017, the gaom had accumulated losses of $117,848,074 anextkat of any
future losses and whether or not the Company caergte profits in future years remains uncertaithe Company
currently does not generate sufficient revenuet@cits operating expenses. There is also naingrtthat the Company
will be able to raise additional funds by issuinglier shares and/or the raising of debt and,dii $unds are available, on
what terms the Company would be able to secure.tRefier note 2(a) for further information on thetenial uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Companyiktyako continue as a going concern.

Competition - with respect to BREVAGeius®, the Company’s lead breast cancer risk test, th@pany is currently
subject to limited direct competition from biotedfwgy and diagnostic companies, academic and &@s@astitutions and
government or other publicly-funded agencies. Hememany potential competitors, which include atésand public

sector enterprises in Australia, the U.S. and disegy have greater experience in the areas ofcinaesearch and
development, marketing, sales, distribution, tecdinand regulatory matters than the Company daddswever, the

Company maintains an extensive patent portfolicctvidioes provide some protection for the BREVA@es® test.

Intellectual property (“IP”) risks - the Company relies on its portfolio of patentatept applications and exclusive
licenses to patents relating to genetic technadogizhile the Company patents and protects itg fannot be certain that
additional patents will be issued to it or thatpttents will withstand challenges by others. mRatessued to, or licensed
by, the Company may be infringed or third partiesyndevelop similar technologies. Further, patemnéy not provide
meaningful protection from competitors. The Compamay also need to sue, or be sued, by third gartigarding its
patents and other IP rights. These suits may sttya@nd would divert funds and resources fromG@benpany and cause a
distraction to Management.

Professional liability risks - by the very nature of its operations, the Corgfgahusiness exposes it to potential liability
risks that are inherent in the testing, manufasgnmarketing and sale of genetic tests. In tlemesf a mistake occurring,
including an incorrect result of analysis of gemetiriations or other screening tests performesl cthmmercial sale of a
genetic test by the Company may expose it to psifral liability claims and possible adverse putylicLitigation of such
claims could be costly. Further, if a court weygdquire the Company to pay damages to a plaittif amount of such
damages could harm its financial condition, desjigeCompany having significant levels of publia groduct liability
insurance coverage to protect it from such risks.

Government regulation— in addition to general regulation and laws ajglie to all businesses, the Company is subject to
accreditation regulation and legislation relatinggenetic research and testing. From time to tiedgral, state and/or
local governments adopt or change regulationsimglab the conduct of genetic research and getediing. In future,
such regulations could limit or restrict the Comgargenetic research activities as well as geriesting for research or
clinical purposes. Regulations restricting gentetiting could adversely affect the Company’s it market and sell its
products and services. Accordingly, any regulatioh this nature could increase the costs of opesr restrict its
ability to conduct its testing business and migtvesisely affect its operations and financial caadit
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)

Material business risks (cont.)

Ethical issues- public opinion regarding ethical issues relatedhe confidentiality and appropriate use of genetsting
results may influence government authorities tbfoallimits on, or regulation of the use of, géndesting. In addition,
such authorities could prohibit testing for gengtiedisposition to certain conditions, particulaidy those that have no
known cure. Adverse publicity or public opiniofiating to genetic research and testing could rethegotential markets
for the Company’s services, which could adverségcaits revenues. Further, the patents it haldsr uses of “non-
coding” DNA have broad scope and have also beeaubject of much debate and some criticism in thdiaa Potential
licensees could take legal action to seek the ament] re-examination, revocation or invalidationtioése patents,
something which has happened previously on segecalsions, though the Company has prevailed sual cases.

BREVAGen™ - since the launch of the Company’'s BREVA@¢étest in June 2011, a number of potential commercial
risks have been identified. The test exists iewa area of genetic testing, being a predictive tasd it may take time to
establish credibility and educate potential custsnwehich may delay establishing reasonable ratesalefs. Despite
already having various studies and review publicetj clinician adoption of the test requires suiihresources and
effort. The establishment of a US company, sudh@f£ompany’s subsidiary Phenogen Sciences kxqujnes staffing
with qualified and experienced salespeople who ireqtime to establish customer contacts and consalés.
Invariably, some new employees are not able to tattaphe new sales environment and may need toepkaaed,
potentially hampering growth. Even though the Camys laboratory is CLIA certified, U.S. governmdrgalth care
programs could potentially restrict its ability aéfer the test in the U.S., thereby restricting #wailable market. The
US healthcare reimbursement system with which the@any interacts is complex, involving a seriesndependent
insurers and other third parties involved to assiih credentialing and the administration of theyment processes.
Establishing benchmarks with insurers is a timesoanng process which could delay the receipt dfaihpayments
until such time as “rules” with each provider candstablished. The introduction of the Affordablre€CAct in 2014 has
created additional people with insurance coveragehas resulted in many people selecting policiéh Wwigher
deductibles. This could reduce the reimbursemerdguatnfrom insurers, place more cost onto the phte thus
negatively impact the willingness of patients toesgto take the BREVAGEM test. The transition from a traditional
reimbursement system through insurance provideasdioect patient self-pay program introduced 1ilA&3017 may not
produce the desired result of providing economit process certainty to the transaction for thetheate provider and
the patient and overall improvement of the pricamgl billing complexities. The launch of BREVAG@#us® (expanded
SNP panel applicable to African-American and Hispagthnicities as well as Caucasian) in October420ikings
additional risks with the costs of development,lutelations and marketing communications addmgwerhead costs.
There is a risk that the forecasted increase iakgptfor BREVAGeplus® does not occur to offset the cost of this
product introduction.

Risk management

In respect of the above risks, the Group takesoadtive approach to risk management. The Boardsigonsible for
ensuring that risks and opportunities are idewkifim a timely basis and that the Group’s objectaed activities are
aligned with those risks and opportunities. Thar@delieves that it is important for all Board ntems to be a part of this
process and the Board takes overall responsiliditythe recognition and management of risk. Therdew of the

compliance and control mechanisms has been detetgatiee Audit Committee through its Charter.

The Board believes that the Group is not yet Sefiity large to warrant the appointment of an inékauditor.

SHARE OPTIONS
Unissued shares under option

As at the date of this Report, there were 75,1@fissued ordinary shares in the Company undéropDuring the
year ended 30 June 2017 a total of 22,750,000reptmacquire ordinary shares in the Company wenatgd. All options
were granted at nil cost. Refer Note 22 of tharfiial statements for details regarding the outstgroptions.

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of opton

During the 2017 financial year no shares were tsisea result of the exercise of options. No optimave been exercised
since the end of the financial year. During th&2@nancial year, a total of 1,500,000 optiond tmad been issued to
employees lapsed due to forfeiture. Option holdersiot have any right, by virtue of their optiotts participate in any
share issue of the Company or any related bodycatg



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2017 Financial Report

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFI CERS

During the financial year, the Company paid a premin respect of a contract insuring the Directord Officers of the
Company and any related body corporate againstbditly incurred in his or her capacity as a Dieeadr Officer to the
extent permitted by th€orporations Act 2001 The contract of insurance prohibits disclosdréne nature of the insurance
provided and the amount of the premium. The Compes agreed to indemnify the current and formeed@rs and
Executive Officers against all liabilities to oth@ersons that may arise from their position asdbirs or Officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries, except where to deositd be prohibited by law.

10
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

This Remuneration Report outlines the Director Brecutive remuneration arrangements of Geneticriabies Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectivelye “Group”) in accordance with the requiremerftthe Corporations
Act 2001and its Regulations. For the purposes of thisoReKey Management Personnel (*KMP”) of the Graane
defined as those persons having authority and medgtity for planning, directing and controllinge major activities of
the Company and the Group, directly or indiredtigjuding any Director (whether executive or ndtjie parent company,
and includes executives in the Group who meetriteria, as set out below, receiving the highestueeration.

For the purposes of this Report, the term “Exeelitancompasses the Group’s Chief Executive OffiCéief Financial
Officer, Scientific Director, Quality and Busine§perations Director, Vice President Sales & Marigtand Senior
Medical Director. For details regarding changekKégy Management Personnel during the period fradulg 2016 to the
date of this Report, please refer to the notdseafoiot of the Remuneration Table.

Details of Directors and Key Management Personnelsaat balance date

Directors Executives

Dr Malcolm R. BrandorfNon-Executive Chairman) Mr Kevin Fischer(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive Director Ms Diana Newpor{Quality and Business Operations Director)

& Chief Executive Officer) Dr Richard Allman(Scientific Director)

Mr Grahame Leonard ANNon-Executive) Mr Chris SaundergVice President Sales & Marketing, Phenogen
Dr Lindsay WakefieldNon-Executive) Sciences Inc.)

Dr Paul KasiarfNon-Executive) Dr Susan GrosESenior Medical Director, Phenogen Sciences Inc.)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is made up of a majofiipdependent non-executive directors. The Cotemils, amongst
other things, responsible for determining and meivig remuneration arrangements for the Directdrs,Ghief Executive
Officer and the Senior Leadership Team.

As at the date of this report, the compositiorhefRemuneration Committee is:

Dr Lindsay Wakefield — Chairman of the Committee
Dr Paul Kasian
Mr Eutillio Buccilli

As an executive, Mr Buccilli does not take partigliberations pertaining to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropsatef the nature and amount of remunerationtpdidrectors and
Executives on a periodic basis by reference tovaelkeemployment market conditions, with the oveddjective of
ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the teterof a high quality Board and Senior Leaderdream.

Remuneration strategy

The performance of the Company depends upon tHityopfats Directors and Executives. To prospgbee Company must
attract, motivate and retain appropriately skill@cectors and Executives.

In particular, the Company embodies the followiniggiples in its remuneration framework:

» provide competitive and reasonable rewards tocatirad retain high calibre Executives;

» wherever possible, align Executive rewards to teaton of shareholder value;

» ensure that a portion of an Executive’s remunerdsidat risk”; and

> establish appropriate, demanding performance afdtevariable Executive remuneration.

The remuneration strategy is recommended by theuReration Committee and approved by the Board.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Remuneration structure

In accordance with best practice corporate govesahe structure of Non-Executive Director anddtitiee remuneration
is separate and distinct.

The key performance indicators applicable for ak&itives are quantifiable and the methods of reasent are defined.
Potential levels of remuneration are linked to epelformance indicator based on the pretext th#tef performance
indicators as defined are met then the businessiaik more likely achieved certain key financiaktrategic objectives.
In addition to the various key performance indicaithat are used to assess the performance oEs@clutive, the overall
financial performance of the Company is also takém consideration when determining both base segéremuneration
and short term incentive payments for those indiisl

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Objective

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneratioteatlavhich provides the Company with the abilibyattract and retain
Directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurriagost which is acceptable to shareholders.

Structure

The Company’s Constitution and the Listing Rulesttd Australian Securities Exchange specify that dlggregate
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors shall btedrined from time to time by a General Meetinglodreholders. An
amount not exceeding the amount determined is theided between the Directors as agreed. The mastnt

determination was made at the 2007 Annual Geneegtikly, when shareholders approved an aggregatemegation not
exceeding $500,000 per year.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought tqppeweed by shareholders and the manner in whighadpportioned
amongst Directors are reviewed annually.

Each Non-Executive Director receives a fee foringras a Director of the Company. No additionakfare paid to any
Director for serving on a sub-committee of the Blo&aence all fees disclosed on page 16 are basbyamture.

Executive remuneration

Objective

The Group aims to reward Executives with a level mix of remuneration which is commensurate witkirtpositions and
responsibilities within the Group and so as to:

» reward Executives for Group and individual perfoncgagainst targets set by reference to suitabiehibearks;
> align the interests of Executives with those ofghareholders; and
» ensure that the total remuneration paid is conipetity market standards.

Structure

The remuneration paid to Executives is set witkrefce to prevailing market levels and compristsea remuneration
comprising base salary and superannuation, vasbod-term incentives (which are linked to agreexy Rerformance
Indicators (“KPIs”"), as described below under thading of Variable remuneration), and a long-teption component.

Fixed remuneration

Objective

The Remuneration Committee oversees the settirfixedf remuneration on an annual basis. The processists of a
review of Company, divisional and individual perfance, relevant comparative remuneration in th&eband internally
and, where appropriate, external advice on polaies practices. The members of the Committee hawess to external
advice independent of Management.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Fixed remuneration (cont.)

Structure

Fixed remuneration consists of some or all of dilefing components:

> base salary;

» non-monetary benefits which can include a motoicketallowance, health insurance etc.; and
» superannuation benefits, which includes employatritmutions,

With the exception of the employer contributionsstgerannuation, Executives are given some fléxilid decide the
composition of their total fixed remuneration ahé &llocation between cash and other benefitss ifitended that the
manner of payment chosen will be optimal for trepient without creating any additional cost foe @Broup.

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually with rafieeeto individual performance, market benchmarksnidividual roles
and the overall financial performance of the GroApy changes to the fixed remuneration of Exeedtiare first approved
by the Remuneration Committee.

All employee remuneration is evaluated on a redodesis using a set of variables and taking into@aicthe addition of

the statutory superannuation contribution. An s@®ent of existing base salaries is made annusihg Lcomparisons
against independent market data which providesrimdtion on salaries and other benefits paid forpamable roles within

the biotech and pharmaceutical industries, usiird tharty salary survey data. Annual performaredemws with each

employee are based on a rating system which istosassess his or her eligibility for salary inges Other qualitative
factors, including the specialised knowledge amukernce of the individual and the difficulty optacing that person, are
also taken into account when considering salanystialients.

Variable remuneration

Objective

The objective of variable remuneration is to:

» align the interests of Executives with those ofshalders;

> link Executive rewards to the achievement of stjiatgoals and performance of the Company; and
» ensure that the total remuneration paid by the Goyps competitive by market standards.

Short Term Incentive (“STI")

STl is an annual plan that applies to Executives @her senior employees that is based on therpaface of both the
Company and the individual during a given finangiear. STI ranges vary depending on the role,orespilities and
deliverables achieved by each individual. Actull @ayments granted to the relevant employee \eflethd on the extent
to which the pre-agreed specific targets are m#tinva financial year. Specific targets are queitie with the agreed
method of measurement defined at the beginningeofihancial year. The ongoing performance offkecutive or senior
employee is evaluated regularly during the perforceacycle.

Group objectives, and their relative weighting, ywalepending on the position and responsibility ld tespective
individual, but in respect of the year ended 32017 include, amongst other things, the achientoie

» achieving or exceeding revenue targets;

» achieving targets for cost reduction or efficiegeyns;

» contributing to business growth and expansion; and

» performance or the delivery of results which excageed targets.

These measures are chosen as they represent thirikeng for the short term success of the busiaess provide a
framework for delivering long term value. Persomadl operating objectives vary according to the asld responsibility
of the Executive and include objectives such asiceerdelivery to customers, project delivery, coiapte outcomes,
intellectual property management and various stafiagement and leadership objectives.

Achievement of an individual's targets or objecsive documented and assessed by both the indivaddathis or her direct
manager. The individual will participate in an aahperformance review and must provide evidendbebbjectives that
he or she has delivered during the period undéewevEach objective is then rated on an achievésmale. Depending
on the aggregate of the ratings, the individual treligible to receive an STI payment.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Variable remuneration (cont.)

STI payments, if any, are generally paid in Auguseptember of each year subject to the complefidime performance
review process and the receipt of a satisfactdiiygia The Board conducts this process in the oatiee CEO.

Long Term Incentive (“LTI")

The objective of the Group’s LTI arrangements isaward Executives and senior employees in a mahaegligns their
remuneration with the creation of shareholder vaeafts such, significant LTI grants are generaillyonade to Executives
who are able to influence the generation of shagdehavealth and have an impact on the Group’s teng profitability.
There are no specific performance hurdles, apanh fcertain vesting provisions, in respect of thd gfiants made to
Executives. Options with a vesting period alsyeses a retention tool and may reduce the likehafohigh performing
Executives and senior employees being targetedhgy oompanies.

LTI grants to Executives and senior employees alwated in the form of options over unissued aadinshares in the
Company which are granted under the terms and wonsliof the Company’s Employee Option Plan. SeteE&xecutives
who contribute significantly to the long term ptability of the Company are invited to participatehe Employee Option
Plan. The remuneration value of these grantsvane is determined with reference to the natutbeoindividual’s role,

as well as his or her individual potential and gpeperformance.

The options are granted at no cost, have an appadilife of 4.5 years and vest;

¢ in three equal tranches commencing on the dateec2@17 Annual General Meeting of the Company bhad &t
each of the 12 and 24 month anniversaries thereafte

During the year ended 30 June 2017, a net shaegHpayments expense of $120,287 (2016: $50,239%neased by the
Company in respect of all options which had presfipbeen granted to Executives and other seniotoyegs.

In cases where an Executive ceases employmenttpribe vesting of his or her options, the optiars forfeited after a
prescribed period if they have not been exercidéte prescribed period ranges from two to six mantlepending on the
circumstances under which they left the Compary, resignation, retirement, termination or death.the event of a
change of control of the Company, the performareeg end date will be brought forward to the daft¢he change of
control and awards will vest over this shorteneatbpe

The following table shows the key performance iattics for the Group over the past five financiargeended 30 June.

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
$ $ $ $ $

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners
of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,403,826)| (8,458,965)| (8,810,170)| (10,125,197)| (9,298,367)
Basic earnings per share (cents) (0.40) (0149) 2J0.8 (1.76) (2.97)
Increase/(decrease) in share price (63.2)% (32.1)% (22.2)% (62.1)% (20.8)%
Total Key Management Personnel
(KMP)incentives (being STl and LTI) as a (2.35)% (2.36)% (1.30)% (0.90)% (1.36)%
percentage of profit/(loss) for the year
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Variable remuneration (cont.)
Relative proportion of fixed vs variable remuneryatexpense

Fixed remuneration At risk — STI Atrisk — LTI *

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Executive director
Eutillio Buccilli 83% 76% 7% 18% 10% 6%
Other KMP of the
group
Luisa Ashdown - 100% - - - -
Diana Newport 92% 99% - - 8% 1%
Dr Richard Allman 88% 93% 4% 6% 8% 1%
Brian Manuel - 100% - - - -
Kevin Fischer 85% 83% 5% 11% 10% 6%
Chris Saunders 88% 81% 5% 15% 7% 4%
Dr Susan Gross 94% 100% 4% - 2% -

* Since the long-term incentives are provided esislely by way of options, the percentages discladed reflect the
value of remuneration consisting of options, basethe value of options expensed during the ye&erd/applicable,
the expenses include negative amounts for expeesessed during the year due to a failure to satisf vesting
conditions.

** For the period June to December 2016, employmes by way of a consulting agreement, with remati@r by way
of a fixed monthly consultancy fee for service gded on a part time basis. From 1 January to 38 207, Dr Gross was
employed on a part time basis through an employcritact.

Employment contracts

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr Eutillio Buccillis employed under an ongoing contract dated 25ugaepr2015 which
has the following key terms and conditions:

> Base salary of $313,650 plus statutory superaroruatintributions as prescribed under the Supergionu@uarantee
legislation;

» STI payment equivalent to a maximum of 30% of lsedary based on achievement of Key Performancedtais, as
agreed with the Board from time to time.

> Notice period of three months; and

» The contract may be terminated at any time witmatice if serious misconduct has occurred. Whenmibation with
cause occurs, he is only entitled to receive tloatign of remuneration which is fixed and only upthe date of
termination. In this instance, all entittementdath STI and LTI are forfeited and would lapse.

The key provisions contained in the employmentreats for other Key Management Personnel in officthe date of this
Report are:

> the Executive receives a base salary and statstmgrannuation contributions, as prescribed utgeStiperannuation
Guarantee legislation, together with certain STynpents based on achievement of Key Performancedtmis, as
agreed with the Chief Executive Officer from tinotitne;

» the Executive may resign from hiwer position and terminate the contract by givipgaithree months written notice;
» the Company may terminate the contract by providim¢p three months written notice or paymentdn bf notice; and

» the Company may terminate the contract withouiceati the event of serious misconduct. In thitamse, entitements
to both STl and LTI payments are forfeited and isifise.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Employment contracts (cont.)

There are no employment contracts in place withNmy-Executive Director of the Company.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”)

Short-term Post-employment  Other long-  Share-based
Name and title of Year Salaryffees Other  Superanndian”  term benefits Options Totals
Non-Executive Directors $ $ $ $ $ $
Dr Malcolm R. Brandon 2017 91,089 - 8,653 - - 99,742
Non-Executive Chairman 2016 89,303 - 8,484 - - 97,787
Grahame Leonard AM 2017 56,065 - 5,326 - - 61,391
2016 54,967 - 5,222 - - 60,189
Dr Paul Kasian 2017 56,065 - 5,326 - 61,391
2016 54,967 - 5,222 - - 60,189
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 2017 56,065 - 5,326 - - 61,391
2016 54,967 - 5,222 - - 60,189
Totals 2017 259,284 24,631 - 283,915
2016 254,204 - 24,150 - - 238,
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”) (ont.)

Post- Other Share-
Short-term employment  |ong-term based  Termination
Name and title of Year Salary/fees  Other  Superanndi@n” benefit§  Options™  benefits Totals
Executives $ $ $ $ $ $
Eutillio Buccilli * 2017 313,650 33,000 32,566 19,29745,639 - 444,152
Executive Director & 2016 307,500 83,800 32,062 15,5126,623 - 465,504
Chief Executive
Officer
Luisa Ashdowr? 2017 - - - - - - -
Director, Licensing & 2016 6,856 - 2,964 (16,980) - 53,795 46,635
P
Diana Newport 2017 105,493 - 10,022 10,962 10,533 - any,
Quality & Ops. 2016 103,343 - 11,242 (298) 1,373 - 115,660
Director
Dr Richard Allmar? 2017 162,053 8,100 16,526 12,528 17,287 - 216,494
Scientific Director 2016 158,875 11,900 16,518 18,3 2,747 - 198,357
Brian Manuel 2017 - - - - - - -
Chief Financial 2016 66,667 - 6,333 4,263 - - 77,263
Officer
Kevin Fischef 2017 168,300 12,600 17,575 9,421 22,330 - 280,2
Chief Financial 2016 113,808 16,700 10,812 5,454 9,351 - 156,12¢
Officer
Chris Saunder% 2017 283,402 14,832 - 7,408 22,330 - 327,972
US-VP Sales & 2016 183,760 37,629 - 12,277 9,351 - 243,017
Marketing
Dr Susan Gross 2017 165,262 7,481 - 1,978 3,150 - 177,871
US-Senior Medical 2016 5,944 - - - - - 5,944
Director
Sub-totals for 2017 1,198,160 76,013 76,689 61,594 121,269 - 17253
Executives
2016 946,753 150,029 79,931 28,552 49,445 53,795 ,308505
Total remuneration of 2017 1,457,444 76,013 101,32 61,594 121,269 - 1,817,640
Key Management
Personnel 2016 1,200,957 150,029 104,081 28,552 49,445 53,795 1,586,859
Notes pertaining to changes during the year:
1. “Other” includes a bonus paid or payable to Mr Blliago the amount of $33,000 at the discretiortioé Board.
2. Ms Ashdown ceased to be an executive with effechfduly 2015.
3. “Other” includes a bonus paid or payable to Dn#gh in the amount of $8,100 at the discretion efBbard.
4. Mr Manuel held the role of Chief Financial Offiaantil his resignation in October 2015.
5. Mr Fischer was appointed to role of Chief Finan@#icer in November 2015. “Other” includes a boasd or payable in the
amount of $12,600 at the discretion of the board.
6. Mr Saunders was appointed to the role of Vice BezgiSales & Marketing in November 2015. “Otheklindes a bonus paid or

payable in the amount of $14,832 at the discreifcthe board.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”) (ont.)

Dr Gross was engaged under a consulting agreemeantform the role of Senior Medical Director fdrdhogen Sciences Inc
(USA) in June 2016. Remuneration is by way of adixnonthly consultancy fee for services provide@d @art time basis to 31
December 2016, after which Dr Gross was employed jpart time basis through an employment contéitter” includes a
bonus paid or payable in the amount of $7,481eatltbcretion of the board

Referencing the previous two tables:

*  Post-employment benefits as per Corporati®egulation 2M.3.03(1) Item 7

**  Qther long-term benefits as per CorporatioregRlation 2M.3.03(1) Item 8

*** Equity settled share-based payments as per @atons Regulation 2M.3.03(1) Item 11

The details of those Executives nominated as Keydgament Personnel under section 300A oCibwporations Act 2001
have been disclosed in this Report. No other eyap®of the Company meet the definition of “Key igement Personnel”
as defined inAS 24 / (AASB 124) Related Party Disclospoessenior manager” as defined in therporations Act 2001

Options exercised, granted, altered and forfeitedsapart of remuneration during the year ended 30 Jue
2017

Details of the options held by the Executives nated as Key Management Personnel during the yekdeB0 June
2017 are set out below. As at 30 June 2017, there @vexecutives and 4 employees who held opt@atsad been granted
under the Company’s respective option plans.

Options Exercised

No options granted as equity compensation beneflExecutives were exercised during the year.

Options Granted

During the 2017 financial year 21,500,000 optiomsergranted as equity compensation benefits toufixes.

Options Exercise Fair value Final
Name of Executive Granted price per option vesting date
Dr. Richard Allman. 5,000,000 $0.01 $0.005 16 Feb 2022
Diana Newport 4,000,000 $0.01 $0.005 16Xasp
Kevin Fischer 5,000,000 $0.01 $0.005 16 Fegp
Chris Saunders 5,000,000 $0.01 $0.005 b&Ba2
Dr. Susan Gross 2,500,000
Totals 21,500,000

Options Forfeited
No options granted as equity compensation berteflixecutives were forfeited during the year.
Alterationsto terms of Options Granted in 2016

During the 2017 financial year, the vesting coodii attached to 31,736,111 options that had prelidaeen granted as
equity compensation benefits to Executives werenae as follows;

a. Date of Alteration: 17 February 2017
b. Market price of underlying equity instruments atedaf alteration: at a price of $0.01 per share31%,361
c. Terms prior to alteration:
i.  Number and class of underlying equity instrumeB1s736,111 options over ordinary shares with &estri
price of $ 0.02 per share
ii.  Time remaining until expiry:
« Options Granted 25 November 2015 (24,236,111 Oglion- 3.75 years
¢ Options Granted 1 April 2016 (7,500,000 Options) 4.1 years
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Alterationsto terms of Options Granted in 2016 (cont.)

iii.  Vesting conditions; market related vesting condgiof share price growth whereby options can be
exercised at any time after the date on which i®o meets the vesting condition of the 3 months
VWAP of shares traded on the ASX per table aslo

Tranche Number Vesting Condition — VWAP Price
1 $0.05
2 $0.10
3 $0.20

d. Terms following the alteration:
i. Number and class of underlying equity instrume®1s736,111 options over ordinary shares with &estri
price of $ 0.02 per share
il. Time remaining until expiry:
» Options Granted 25 November 2015 (24,236,111 Ogpfien- 3.75 years
» Options Granted 1 April 2016 (7,500,000 Options) 4.1 years
iii. Vesting conditions; non-market related vesting ¢iioks of tenure, vesting in 2 equal tranches as
follows;
* 50% entitlement released from ESCROW on 30 Jun&,201d
* 50% entitlement released from ESCROW on 30 Jun8.201
e. Total Fair value of the options;
i. Immediately before the alteration : $ 423,798 (gsirMonte Carlo simulation method)
ii. Immediately after the alteration : $ 65,667 (usriglack-Scholes option pricing model)
iii. Difference — reduction of $ 358,131

Options exercised, granted and forfeited as part aemuneration during the year ended 30 June 2016

During the 2016 financial year 31,736,111 optiomsergranted as equity compensation benefits toufives. No options
were exercised and 1,500,000 were forfeited.

Fair values of options

The above options granted during the 2017 finarygal vest in three equal tranches, with the fiiesiche vesting on the
date of the 2017 Annual General Meeting and themeah each anniversary of that date, subjectéadhipient meeting
the vesting condition of continuous tenure durimg relevant period.

Fair values at grant date are independently detedniising a Black-Scholes option pricing model thka¢s into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, theespece at grant date and expected price volatfithe underlying share,
the expected divided yield and the risk-free irderate for the term of the option.

Fair values at grant date of the options issuethgtine 2016 financial year was originally deteredrndependently using
a Monte Carlo Simulation method that takes intamant the exercise price, the VWAP hurdle (prece@mgonth price),
the term of the option, the share price at gramt dad expected price volatility of the underlysizare, the expected
divided yield and the risk-free interest rate fue term of the option.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)
Option holdings of Key Management Personnel 30 Jur017

Financial

Vesting as at year end year Fair
Name of option in which Value yet
holder Opening Number of options Closing Not

balance Granted Exercised Lapsed balance Exercidab exercisable options to vest
vest $
Executive
Eutillio Buccilli 14,236,111 - - - 14,236,111 7,1085 7,118,056 2018 90,777
Diana Newport 2,500,000 4,000,000 - - 6,500,000 50,0 5,250,000 2019 30,719
Richard Allman 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 10,000,000 ,50@,000 7,500,000 2019 46,438
Kevin Fischer 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 10,000,000 50@000 7,500,000 2019 56,883
Chris Saunders 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 10,000,000,50000 7,500,000 2019 56,883
Susan Gross - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 0192 20,000
Totals 31,736,111 21,500,000 - - 53,236,111 15088, 37,368,056 301,700
Option holdings of Key Management Personnel 30 Jurn2016
Financial

Vesting as at year end year Fair
Name of option in which Value yet
holder Opening Number of options Closing Not

balance Granted Exercised Lapsed balance Exercidab exercisable options to vest
vest $
Executive
Eutillio Buccilli - 14,236,111 - - 14,236,111 - 236,111 * 205,377
Luisa Ashdown 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - - - -
Luisa Ashdown 500,000 - - (500,000) - - - - -
Diana Newport - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 * 24,719
Richard Allman - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,00 * 49,438
Kevin Fischer - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 * 72,133
Chris Saunders - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,00 * 72,133
Totals 1,500,000 31,736,111 - (1,500,000) 31,736,11 - 31,736,111 423,800
* Options vest and are exercisable at any time #feedate on which they meet the vesting conditamdescribed above
Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel
30 June 2017
Shares held in Genetic Opening Number of shares Auired on Closing
Technologies Limited balance Bought Sold exercisé o balance
convertible notes

Director
Dr Malcolm Brandon - - - - -
Mr Eutillio Buccilli - - - - -
Mr Grahame Leonard AM 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
Dr Paul Kasian 256,410 - - - 256,41
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 15,325,263 - 7,000,000 - 8,283
Executive
Dr. Richard Allman - - - - -
Diana Newport - - - - -
Kevin Fischer - - - - -
Chris Saunders - - - - -
Susan Gross - - - - -
Totals 21,581,673 - 7,000,000 - 14,581,673

There were no loans to/from Key Management Persatumimg the financial years ending 2017 and 2016.

End of Remuneration Report
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AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Auditor independence

The Directors of Genetic Technologies Limited heseeived an independence declaration from Pricel@iseCoopers,
the Company’s auditor, as reproduced immediatdligviing the Directors’ Declaration on page 63 & ffinancial Report.
Non-audit services

During the financial year, the following fees wead or payable to the auditors of Genetic TechgietoLimited and its
subsidiaries in respect of both audit and non-asgitices:

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $
Audit and assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of:
Audit * 325,972 334,560
Audit related 107,451 -
Other audit firms in respect of:
Audit of the Financial Reports of subsidiaries 4,070 5,868
437,493 340,428

Total remuneration in respect of audit services
1 Audit fees consist of services that would normiadiyprovided in connection with statutory & reguiatdilings or
engagements, including services that generally trdyindependent accountant can reasonably provide.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Company is not aware of any breaches of anyaemuental regulation during the 2017 financialryea

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Cogtimns (Rounding in Financial/ Director's reportastrument
2016/191, issued by the Australian and Securitieslavestments Commission, relating to the “rougdiff’ of amounts
in the Directors’ Report. Amounts in the Directd®eport have been rounded off in accordance il €lass order to the
nearest dollar.

PROCEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No proceedings have been brought or intervened ém dehalf of the Company with leave to the Conder section 237
of theCorporations Act 2001
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DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
Meeting attendances

The number of meetings of Directors (including the meetings of Sub-Committees of the Board) held during the financial
year, and the number of such meetings attended by each Director, were as follows:

Directors’ meetings Audit Committee meetings Remuneration Committee
meetings
Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible
Dr Malcolm Brandon 10 11 2 2 % <
Mr Eutillio Buccilli 10 11 - - 2 2
Mr Grahame Leonard 10 11 4 4 - -
AM.
Dr Paul Kasian 11 11 4 4 2 2
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 10 11 4 4 2 2

Sub-committee membership
As at the date of this Report, the composition of the Sub-Committees are:

Audit Committee: Mr Grahame Leonard AM — Chairman of the Committee

Dr Paul Kasian
Dr Lindsay Wakefield

Remuneration Committee: Dr Lindsay Wakefield — Chairman of the Committee
Dr Paul Kasian
Mr Eutillio Buccilli

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.
/./( ( CE ; 0 o> :

DR. MALCOLM R. BRANDON
Chairman

Melbourne, 29 August 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Genetic Technologies Limited (the “Company”) angl Board are committed to achieving the leading dstads of
corporate governance.

Reference is made to the revised Corporate Govegrarinciples and Recommendations issued and defrize time to
time by the ASX Corporate Governance Council. Buard believes that all concepts of the reviseadiies and
Recommendations have been satisfied, however thedBs realistic with respect to the relative sirel nature of the
Company and have implemented the Recommendaticosditgly. The Company endeavours to ensure excepto the
guidelines do not have negative impact on theihesests of shareholders.

While in most respects the Company complies with flecommendations, it is recognised that the deredat and
implementation of policies and practices is an amggrocess that evolves with the needs of thenbkasi and its
stakeholders.

ASX Listing Rule 4.10.3 requires an entity thainisluded in the official list as an ASX Listing toclude in its annual
report either a corporate governance statemenirteats the requirements of that rule or the URthefpage on its website
where such a statement is located.

The Company therefore advises that the currentocai® governance statement and a summary of its ammporate
governance practices as approved by the Board éwgast 2017 may be found via the following link iie Company’s
website:

http://www.qgtgcorporate.com/investor-centre/corpgsigovernance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LO SS)

For the year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated

Notes 2017 2016
$ $

Revenue from operations — genetic testing services 518,506 824,586
Less: cost of sales 4 (492,417) (743,060)
Gross profit from operations — genetic testing sefees 26,089 81,526
Other revenue 5 - 300,548
Other income 6 344,112 492,037
Selling and marketing expenses (2,721,474) (3,186,497)
General and administrative expenses (2,933,659) (3,001,783)
Laboratory and research and development costs (2,366,334) (2,688,333)
Finance costs (31,995) (28,889)
Impairment of intangible assets expense (544,694) -
Net foreign exchange loss (175,871) (427,574)
Loss from operations before income tax expense (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Income tax expense 8 - -
Loss for the year (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ profit
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange (loss)/ gains on translation of contrditedign operations (130,655) 1,307,219
Other comprehensive (loss) /profit for the year, nieof tax (130,655) 1,307,219
Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,534,481) (7,151,746)
Loss for the year is attributable to:
Owners of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Total loss for the year (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Total comprehensive loss for the year is attributale to:
Owners of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,534,481) (7,151,746)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,534,481) (7,151,746)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the Compan
and from operations:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 9 (0.40) (0.49)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 9 (0.40) (0.49)

The above consolidated statement of comprehem&ivene/ (loss) should be read in conjunction withahcompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2017

Consolidated

Notes 2017 2016
$ $

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 10,988,255 11,179,687
Trade and other receivables 11 426,272 630,773
Prepayments and other assets 12 217,122 320,610
Total current assets 11,631,649 12,131,070
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 476,648 550,139
Intangible assets 14 - 608,477
Total non-current assets 476,648 1,158,616
Total assets 12,108,297 13,289,686
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 898,103 837,983
Provisions 16 567,190 494,206
Total current liabilities 1,465,293 1,332,189
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 16 63,960 74,308
Total non-current liabilities 63,960 74,308
Total liabilities 1,529,253 1,406,497
Net assets 10,579,044 11,883,189
EQUITY
Contributed equity 19 122,382,625 115,272,576
Reserves 20 6,044,493 6,054,861
Accumulated losses 21 (117,848,074) (109,444,248)
Total equity 10,579,044 11,883,189

The above consolidated balance sheet should beimeaahjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated

Notes 2017 2016
$ $

Cash flows (used in)/ from operating activities
Receipts from customers 964,520 1,482,970
Payments to suppliers and employees (7,816,924) (9,276,907)
Interest received 38,765 67,099
Net cash flows used in operating activities 10 (6,813,639) (7,726,838)
Cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 582,6 7,131
Purchases of plant and equipment (234,799) (303,462)
Net cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities (182,149) (296,331)
Cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shares 8,049,369 -
Equity transaction costs (1,234,430) (1,654)
Facility fee rebate 295,110 -
Net cash flowsfrom/ (used in) financing activities 7,110,049 (1,654)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivaken 114,261 (8,024,823)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,179,687 18,341,357
Net foreign exchange difference (305,693) 863,153
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 10,988,255 11,179,687

The above consolidated statement of cash flowdadheuead in conjunction with the accompanyingesot
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated

Balance at 30 June 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive profit

Total comprehensive incoméloss

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Value of shares issued on conversion

of convertible notes
Share-based payments

Balance at 30 June 2016

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners
Contributions of equity (net of
transaction costs)

Share-based payments

Share facility fee rebate

Balance at 30 June 2017

Accumulated

Contributed Reserves | Total
equity osses Equity
$ $ $ $
115,247,128 4,697,403 (100,985,283) 18,959,248
- - ,4688,965) (8,458,965)
- 1,307,219 - 1,307,219
- 1,307,219 (8,458,965) b1, 746)
25,448 - - 25,448
- 50,239 - 50,239
25,448 50,239 - 75,687
115,272,576 6,054,861 (109,444,248) 11,883,189
- - ,4(83,826) (8,403,826)
- 0(835) - (130,655)
- (130,655) (8,403,826) (8L3mB1)
6,814,939 - - 6,814,939
- 120,287 - 120,287
295,110 - - 295,110
7,110,049 120,287 - 7,230,336
122,382,625 6,044,493 (117,848,074) 10,579,044

The above consolidated statement of changes ityeshould be read in conjunction with the accomjgamyotes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Financial Report of Genetic Technologies Linhifne “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2043 authorised for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the Directoreed®9 August 2017. Genetic Technologies Limiteth¢orporated in Australia
and is a company limited by shares. The Dirediak® the power to amend and reissue the finaneiginients.

The Company’s ordinary shares are publicly tradethe Australian Securities Exchange under the sy@B G and, via Level I|
American Depositary Receipts, on the NASDAQ Capitatket under the ticker GENE.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Basis of preparation
This general purpose Financial Report has beerapgdpn accordance with Australian Accounting Stéadsl, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Acting Standards Board and tBerporations Act 2001.

Compliance with IFRS

The Financial Report complies with Australian Accting Standards as issued by the Australian Acoogint
Standards Board and International Financial Rempi&tandards (“IFRS”) as issued by the Internatidwaounting
Standards Board.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared timeldristorical cost conventicexcept for financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) whiare measured at fair value.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires ube of certain critical accounting estimates.aldb requires
Management to exercise its judgement in the prooésspplying the Group’s accounting policies. Taeas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complgxir areas where assumptions and estimates élctd the
financial statementsye disclosed in Note 3.

Going concern

For the year ending 30 June 2017, the Group indwxrtetal comprehensive loss of $8,534,481 (201A.58,746)
and net cash outflow from operations of $6,813,@84.6: $7,726,838). As at 30 June 2017 the Groigtb&al
cash and cash equivalents of $10,988,255.

In light of these historical cash outflows, andffier expected cash outflows from operations imtae twelve
months, the Directors have initiated a comprehensikategic review of the Group’s operations. Teigew,
which is intended to be undertaken during the fiedt of the 2018 financial year, will explore adgirange of
possible strategic alternatives designed to magimesar and long-term value for the Group’s shad#rsl(the
Group has retained Roth Capital Partners LLC teesas a financial advisor in the process). Theesiia review
will also give consideration to future cash needsrtsure the Group continues to hold adequatesle¥elash
resources to meet creditors and other commitments.

The continuing viability of the Group and its atyilto continue as a going concern and meet itssceeiud
commitments as they fall due is dependent on theessful outcome of the strategic review and,qtineed, on the
satisfactory completion of an equity raising.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the outcomdefstrategic review, and the timing, quantum oratbidity to
raise additional funds if identified in the strategeview, there is a material uncertainty that roagt significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a gaingcern and therefore, that it may be unableabiseits assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal counbusiness. However, the Directors believe thatGroup will be
successful in the above matters and accordinglye peepared the financial report on a going conbesis. As
such no adjustments have been made to the finastataments relating to the recoverability andsifigstion of the
asset carrying amounts or classification of li#ib#i that might be necessary should the Groupaable to continue
as a going concern.

28



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2017 Financial Report

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( cont.)
(@) Basis of preparation (cont.)
Going Concern (cont.)
As a U.S. SEC registrant, the Company is requindtht/e its financial statements audited in accarelavith
Public Company Oversight Board ("PCAOB") standarBgferences in these IFRS financial statementsatiters
that may cast significant doubt about the Compaatyilty to continue as a going concern also raidestantial
doubt as contemplated by the PCAOB standards.
(b) New accounting standards and interpretations
() Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reprted in the current period (and/or prior period)
The group has applied the following standards andrelments for the first time for their annual repor period
commencing 1 July 2016:
* AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accountingrird AASB 112 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
* AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accountingnterd AASB 107 — Disclosure Initiative
* AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accountingnad AASB 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions
The adoption of these standards did not have apgdiron the current period or any prior period esndot likely
to affect future periods.
(i) Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yeadopted
In respect of the year ended 30 June 2017, thepGras assessed all new Australian accounting stis)dand the
IFRS equivalent, mandatory for adoption during thwerent year, noting no new standards which wowdeha
material effect on the disclosure in these findret@ements. There has been no effect on thé praf loss or the
financial position of the Group. Certain new agting standards and interpretations have beenghdalithat are not
mandatory for 30 June 2017 reporting periods.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of these @wlards and interpretations is set out below.
Title of Standard | Summary and impact on Grouparfaial statements Application Application

date of the |date for Grou
standard for financial
year ending

AASB 9 Financia |AASB 9 Financial Instruments replaces AASB 139 addresses 1 January | 30 June 2019
Instruments and classification, measurement and derecognifiéinancial 2018

assets and liabilities. It also addresses the mglgdraccounting
requirements, including changes to hedge effeatisgntreatment ¢
hedging costs and risk components that can be Hedge

AASB 9 introduces a new expected loss impairmerdehthat will
require entities to account for expected crediédssat the time of
recognising the asset. The Group does not expeetdbption of the
new standard to have a material impact on its ifieest$on and
measurement of the financial assets and liabildfets results on
adoption of the new impairment model.

The new standard will result in extended disclosumehe financial
statements. The Group has decided not to earlyt#d®pB 9.

AASB 15 AASB 15 provides a single, principles based fivepsinodel to be 1 January | 30 June 2019
Revenue from  |applied to all contracts with customers. The fitepps in the model 2018
Contracts with  |are as follows:

Customers 1

identify contracts with customers
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2. identify the separate performance obligations
3. determine the transaction price of the contract

4. allocate the transaction price to each of the sépar
performance obligations, and

5. recognise the revenue as each performance obligatio
satisfied.

Guidance is provided on topics such as the pointhich revenue is
recognised, accounting for variable consideratiosts of fulfilling
and obtaining a contract and various related nsatfes the Group
continues to refine its billing model, any adjustisethat may arise:
as a result of adopting this new standard will tvesidered when
assessing its overall revenue recognition policy.

AASB 16 Leases| AASB 16 will primarily affect theazinting by lessees and will 1 January | 30 June 2020

(©

(d)

result in the recognition of almost all leasestmnthalance sheet. 2019
The standard removes the current distinction betvegerating &

financing leases and requires recognition of aatg#ise right to useg

the leased item) and financial liability to paytada for almost all of

the lease contracts. The accounting by lessorseWenywill not

significantly change

Currently the Group does not have any leases watterial
commitments beyond the adoption date, but will icet to monitol
the potential future impact on the balance sheetwdntering into
any new lease agreements.

The new standard will result in extended disclosumehe financial
statements. The Group has decided not to earlyt&#ddpB 16

There are no other standards that are not yettiefeand that are expected to have a material itlnpathe entity
in the current or future reporting periods and ame$eeable future transactions.

Principles of consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorpordte &ssets and liabilities of all subsidiaries ofn&ie
Technologies Limited (the “Company” or “Parent Eyifi as at 30 June 2017 and the results of all igidrges for
the year then ended. Genetic Technologies Limated its subsidiaries together are referred to im Bmancial
Report as the “Group” or the “Consolidated Entity”.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structuestdities) over which the group has control. Theug controls an
entity when the group is exposed to, or has rightsariable returns from its involvement withiretantity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its powedirect the activities of the entity. Subsidiarée fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred ®®@roup. They are de-consolidated from the datiectimtrol ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreatjs@ts / losses on transactions between Group caegpane
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminatddss the transaction provides evidence of thaimmgnt of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subgekahave been changed where necessary to enswgistency with
the Group’s policies. Non-controlling intereststlie results and equity of subsidiaries are shapamstely in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomesaticlated balance sheet and consolidated statevhehénges in
equity, respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner cemnisisith the internal reporting provided to theefloperating
decision maker. The chief operating decision mak#io is responsible for allocating resources assgssing the
performance of the operating segments, has begtifiele as the Chief Executive Officer.
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2.
(€)

(f)

©)

(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)

Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity,r@éc Technologies Limited has been prepared osdhee basis as
the consolidated financial statements, exceptitivastments in subsidiaries are accounted for gttinahe financial

statements of Genetic Technologies Limited. Ldansubsidiaries are written down to their recovieralalue as at
balance date.

Foreign currency translation

The functional and presentation currency of Gen&tchnologies Limited and its Australian subsidiaris the
Australian dollar (AUD). Transactions in foreigargencies are initially recorded in the functiocalrency at the
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactMonetary assets and liabilities which are denatad in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rate of excharigg at the balance sheet date. All differenaestaken to the
statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms gibidigal cost in a foreign currency are translatsthg the
exchange rate ruling at the date of the initiahdection. Non-monetary items measured at fairevalua foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rdiag at the date when the fair value was determirigoe functional
currencies of the Company’s three overseas sulisgl@re as follows:

GeneType AG — Swiss francs (CHF)
GeneType Corporation — United States dollars (USD)
Phenogen Sciences Inc. — United States dollars JUSD

As at the reporting date, the assets and lialsilibiethese subsidiaries are translated into theeptation currency of
Genetic Technologies Limited at the rate of exclkamngling at the balance sheet date and the stateafen
comprehensive income is translated at the weightettage exchange rates for the period unless ghiwt a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effdcthe rates prevailing on the transaction datesyliich case
income and expenses are translated at the datdse diransactions. The exchange differences arismghe
retranslation are recognised in other comprehermsomme and taken directly to a separate compafesquity. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumuatamount recognised in equity relating to thatipalar foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of congmskie income.

Earnings per share (“EPS”)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profitibtitable to owners of the Company, excluding arstsof servicing
equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighteztage number of ordinary shares outstanding gitinia financial
year. Diluted EPS adjusts the figures used ird#termination of basic EPS to take into accounafter income tax
effect of interest and other financing costs asdediwith dilutive potential ordinary shares angl weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would have beertandimg assuming the conversion of all dilutivegodial ordinary
shares.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent that itolsapte that the economic benefits will flow to #wmtity and the
revenues can be reliably measured. Revenues eognised at the fair value of the consideratioreited or
receivable net of the amounts of Goods and SerViags The following recognition criteria must alse met before
revenue is recognised:

Genetic testing revenues

The Company operates facilities which provide gertesting services. The Company recognises revémom the
provision of these services when the services haga completed.

License fees, royalties and annuities received

The Company licenses the use of its patented geteetfhnologies. License fee income is recorddueeipfront
where the Group has no future obligations or olerlicense term where the Group has future obtigatbased on
the execution of a binding agreement. The Growgsdmt grant refunds to its customers. Royalties annuities
arising from the above licenses are recognised vélaened in accordance with the substance of theeagmt, in
cases where no future performance is requiredéoZtimpany and collection is reasonably assured.

31



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2017 Financial Report

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)

(h) Revenue recognition (cont.)

(i

0

Interest received
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues theirgjfective interest method.

Research and development tax incentive

The Australian government replaced the researchdamdlopment tax concession with research and aj@veint
(R&D) tax incentive from 1 July 2011. The R&D tamcentive applies to expenditure incurred and the afs
depreciating assets in an income year commencingyr @&fter 1 July 2011. A refundable tax offset Vaikble to
eligible companies with an annual aggregate tumnof/ess than $20 million. Management has assdbse@roup’s
activities and expenditure to determine which eyl to be eligible under the incentive schemee Group accounts
for the R&D tax incentive as a government grane ghant is recognised as other income over thegeariwhich the
R&D expense is recognised.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of options granted under an Empld@ption Plan is recognised as an employee bengfdrese with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair vatumeasured at grant date and recognized over stiagy@eriod over
which all of the specified vesting conditions atelie satisfied. The fair value at grant date i®ermened by
management with the assistance of an independ&mdryasing a Black-Scholes option pricing modebadvonte
Carlo simulation analysis. The total amount tekeensed is determined by reference to the faiewaf the options
granted;

- including any market performance conditions (ehg.éntities share price)
- excluding the impact of any service and non-mapkeetormance vesting conditions (e.g. remaining an
employee over a specified time period)

The cumulative employee benefits expense recogaisedch reporting date until vesting date refl@rthe extent to
which the vesting period has expired; and (ii) thenber of awards that, in the opinion of the Dexiof the Group,
will ultimately vest. This opinion is formed basewl the best information available at balance date.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are firdgias a minimum an expense is recognised &ae ifdrms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense isgeised for any increase in the value of the traimaas a result of
the modification, as at the date of modificatioWhere appropriate, the dilutive effect of outstagdoptions is
reflected as additional share dilution in the cotafion of diluted earnings per share. The Commapylicy is to
treat the options of terminated employees as tarfes.

Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the perititisax payable on the current period’s taxalterime based on
the national income tax rate for each jurisdiceoijusted by changes in deferred tax assets arilitiegbattributable
to temporary differences and unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated orbésts of the tax laws enacted or substantivelytedaat the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the gamy’s subsidiaries and associates operate andaternaxable
income.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using tlability method, on temporary differences arisimgfween the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgngunts in the consolidated financial statemert®wever, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it@girom initial recognition of an asset or lialiiih a transaction other
than a business combination that, at the time eftidnsaction, affects neither accounting nor texplofit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax regesl (aws) that have been enacted or substantizéigted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply wkerelated deferred income tax asset is realisétdeodeferred
income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax dss@e recognised for deductible temporary diffeesrand unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxabieoants will be available to utilise those tempordifferences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductibdpdrary differences and unused tax losses oitlisiprobable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilisese temporary differences and losses. Deféapetiabilities and
assets are not recognised for temporary differebeéseen the carrying amount and tax bases of timeggs in
controlled entities where the parent entity is ableontrol the timing of the reversal of the temgpy differences and
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)
Income tax (cont.)

it is probable that the differences will not reens the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assetdiabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offsetrent tax assets and liabilities and when tHerdsl tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Currentassets and tax liabilities are offset where th#yehas a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends eitherdtiles on a net basis, or to realise the asset ettlé she liability
simultaneously. Current and deferred tax balamdtgtbutable to amounts recognised directly in ggare also
recognised directly in equity. Current and defétex is recognised in profit or loss, except ®ditent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive incordirectly in equity. In this case, the tax iscatecognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equiggpectively.

Tax consolidation legislation

Genetic Technologies Limited (“GTG”) and its whetiywned Australian-resident subsidiaries have impletied the
tax consolidation legislation. The head entity,GzBnd the subsidiaries in the tax consolidatedig@ccount for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. Tkeesamounts are measured as if each entity inathednsolidated
group continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer owitsright.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax ams, GTG also recognises the current tax as$atslities and the
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax lcmsédax credits assumed from subsidiaries in thedasolidated
group. Assets or liabilities arising under taxdung agreements with the tax consolidated ent#resrecognised as
amounts receivable from or payable to other entitighe Group. Any difference between the amoasssimed and
amounts receivable or payable under the tax fundgrgements are recognised as a contribution tdigtiibution
from) wholly-owned tax subsidiaries.

Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisediimetaofiount of Goods and Services Tax (GST) exsbpte the
GST incurred on a purchase of goods and servicestigecoverable from the taxation authority, inickhcase the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisitibthe asset or as part of the expense item pigcalple; and
receivables and payables are stated with the anod@®ET included. The net amount of GST recoverdfam, or

payable to, the taxation authority is included ag pf receivables or payables in the balance sh@ash flows are
included in the cash flow statement on a grossshasil the GST component arising from investing farahcing

activities, which is recoverable from / payablédtie taxation authority, are classified as operatash flows.

Withholding tax

The Group generates revenues from the grantinigerides to parties resident in overseas count8eash revenues
may, in certain circumstances, be subject to trducton of local withholding tax. In such casesyanues are
recorded net of any withholding tax deducted.

Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised using the effectieesist rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheetrisengash at bank and in hand and short-term depweih an

original maturity of 3 months or less. For thegmses of the cash flow statement, cash and cashatis consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above. Casinlaearns interest at floating rates based iy lolnk deposit
rates. Short-term deposits are made for varyingg@e depending on the immediate cash requirenaérikee Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-termsileades.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which are non-interest beamgenerally have terms of between 30 to 90 dags;ezognised
and carried at original invoice amount less arvadlace for any uncollectible amounts. An allowafaredoubtful
debts is made when there is objective evidenceathateivable is impaired. Such evidence inclageassessment of
the debtor’s ability and willingness to pay the amodue. The amount of the allowance/impairmesd Is measured
as the difference between the carrying amountefride receivables and the estimated future t@ask &xpected to
be received from the relevant debtors.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)

Inventories

Inventories principally comprise laboratory andesteupplies and are valued at the lower of costratdealisable
value. Inventory costs are recognised as the pseciprice of items from suppliers plus freight irdgaand any
applicable landing charges. Costs are assignéuedrasis of weighted average cost.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less acctedutkepreciation and any impairment in value. Beiption is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estichaseful life of the respective asset as follows:

Laboratory equipment — 3 to 5 years

Computer equipment — 3 years

Office equipment — 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements — lease term, being betiveernl 3 years

Costs relating to day-to-day servicing of any itefhproperty, plant and equipment are recognisqutafit or loss as
incurred. The cost of replacing larger parts ahedtems of property, plant and equipment are akged when
incurred and depreciated over the period untilrthext scheduled replacement, with the replacemaris being
subsequently written off.

Intangible assets
Patents

Patents held by the Group are used in the licengstng and research areas and are carriedtambsmortised on
a straight-line basis over their useful lives, bel® years. External costs incurred in filing adtecting patent
applications, for which no future benefit is reasuly assured, are expensed as incurred.

Research and development costs

Costs relating to research activities are expeasédcurred. An intangible asset arising from tigyment expenditure
on an internal project is recognised only when@mneup can demonstrate the technical feasibilitgarfipleting the
intangible asset so that it will be available feewr sale, its intention to complete and its igtiiti use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic bexefie availability of resources to complete thesttgoment and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure attdlle to the intangible asset during its develogmefo date, all
development costs have been expensed as incurtiegiraecoverability cannot be regarded as assured

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whh#reris an indication that an asset may be impaitedny such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimatd@fasset's recoverable amount. An asset’s redaeeaanount is
the higher of its fair value less costs of dispasats value in use and is determined for an iiddi&l asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that ardyiangiependent of those from other assets or grofipssets and the
asset’s value-in-use cannot be estimated to be tass fair value. In such cases, the assested for impairment as
part of the cash-generating unit to which it bekndVhen the carrying amount of an asset or casérgting unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or essraging unit is considered impaired and is writlewn to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futureftss are discounted to their present value uaipge-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment®dintte value of money and the risks specific toasset. Impairment
losses relating to operations are recognised isetlexpense categories consistent with the fundfighe impaired

asset unless the asset is carried at its revalwmedrd, in which case the impairment loss is treafe@ revaluation
decrease.

An assessment is made at each reporting date ahdther there is any indication that previouslyomgused
impairment losses may no longer exist or may haeedsed. If such indication exists, the recoleramount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment isssversed only if there has been a change iedtimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount sindaghenpairment loss was recognised. If so, theyitey amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amdthe.increased amount cannot exceed the carryingrartiwat would
have been determined, net of depreciation, hadnpaifment loss been recognised for the assetan yeiars. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss unlesgverses a decrement previously charged to eduityhich case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increaseer Aftch a reversal, the depreciation charge ist&djun future periods
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont )

(s)

(®)

(u)

v)

(w)

Impairment of assets (cont.)

to allocate the asset'’s revised carrying amouss, &y residual value, on a systematic basis ts/ezmaining useful
life.

Employee benefits
() Short-term obligations

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated result of employees rendering services tipetoeporting
date. These benefits include wages and salariesahleave and long service leave. Liabilitigsiag in respect of
wages and salaries, expected to be settled witleivé months of the reporting date are measurddeat nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates which are texbtrbe paid when the liability is settled. Bxges for non-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when theelesataken during the year and are measured ed patid or
payable.

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and anneahiMe are not expected to be settled wholly witRimbnths after the
end of the reporting period in which the employeeders the related service. They are thereforgnised in the
provision for employee benefits and measured aprieent value of expected future payments to ke rimarespect
of services provided by employees up to the enthefreporting period using the projected unit dredthod.

Consideration is given to expected future wage saidry levels, experience of employee departurdspaniods of

service. Expected future payments are discourgd) umarket yields at the end of the reportingqueaf corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match, aslglas possible, the estimated future cash outflows

The obligations are presented as current liakslitithe balance sheet if the entity does not hawenconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve monthsrdfte reporting period, regardless of when theaaattlement is
expected to occur.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group does not have any defined benefit furBlsitutory contributions to defined contributiorpstannuation
funds are recognised as an expense as they be@yablg@ Prepaid contributions are recognised aasset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in tharéupayments is available. Statutory contributians legally
enforceable in Australia.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service claims and engkod obligations are recognised when the Grogpaharesent
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result giast event, it is probable that an outflow of teses embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle théigaition and a reliable estimate can be made ohtheunt of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or &l pfovision to be reimbursed, the reimbursemergdsgnised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursementtusilly certain. The expense relating to angvsion is
presented in the statement of comprehensive inc&ef any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matengovisions are determined by discounting theeeigd future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects market assests of the time value of money and, where apfateprthe risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting iseds the increase in the provision due to the passédime is

recognised as a finance cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried aitised cost and represent liabilities for goodd amrvices
provided to the Group prior to the end of the fitiahyear that are unpaid and arise when the Gbegpmes obliged
to make future payments in respect of the purcbé$igese goods and services. Trade payables hed payables
generally have terms of between 30 and 60 days.

Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at thev#diie of the consideration received by the Compalransaction
costs arising on the issue of ordinary sharesem@gnised directly in equity as a deduction, néawf of the proceeds
received. The Company has a share-based paym@n pfan under which options to subscribe for @@mpany’s
shares have been granted to certain executivesthedemployees.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)
(x) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value tigio profit or loss are initially recognised at faalue on the date a
contract is entered into and are subsequently umesh to their fair value and at the end of eagorting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in fair valtezognised in profit or loss.

(y) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used tooawt for all business combinations, including bass
combinations involving entities or businesses uwdanmon control, regardless of whether equity imsents or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transfeardtie acquisition of a subsidiary comprisesfdievalues of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred armddtuity interests issued by the Group. The cersidn transferred
also includes the fair value of any contingent aersition arrangement and the fair value of anyepisting equity
interest in the subsidiary. All costs relatingtmuisitions are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities andtiogent liabilities assumed in a business comhinaare, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at theirrfaalues at the acquisition date. On an acquistip-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controllingrést in the acquiree either at fair value or atrtbn-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquireefsdemtifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, theuatmof any non-controlling interest in the acqeir@nd the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equitgrest in the acquiree over the fair value of@meup’s share of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded aslwgitlo If those amounts are less than the fairugabf the net
identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquiredthrdneasurement of all amounts has been reviehedlifference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargairchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash considerasiateferred, the amounts payable in the futuredaeounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange.diBeount rate used is the entity’s incrementaidvdng rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be ot#d from an independent financier under comparsdstas and
conditions.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are evaluated and badestarical experience and other factors, includirgectations of
future events that may have a financial impact @ €ompany and that are believed to be reasonalder uhe
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liedsliare often determined based on estimates andhpssns of
future events. The key estimates and assumptiaishave a significant risk of causing a materistment to the
carrying value of certain assets and liabilitiethimi the next annual reporting period are set eldw.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assetsngvaired on at least an annual basis, in accordaiite the
accounting policies stated in Note 2(s). At 30eJ2017, the Company has recognised an impairmeense of
$544,694. The assumptions used in the estimatitineafecoverable and carrying amounts as well@itpairment
amount of intangible assets are as detailed inTabteelow.

Share-based payments transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled artiofis with employees by reference to the valuthefequity
instruments at the date on which they are grantbthnagement has determined the fair value by engagn
independent valuer using a Black-Scholes and MBaté simulation options pricing model.

Useful lives of assets

The estimation of the useful lives of assets has limsed on historical experience as well as kease (for leased
equipment) and patent terms (for patents). Intaafgithe condition of the assets is assessedast &nually and
considered against the remaining useful life anfdstaents to useful lives are made when considezedssary.

Revenue from the sale of BREVAGen tests

In accordance with revenue recognition principllee, Group recognises the revenue from the saleR&\B\Ger™

and BREVAGeplus® test on an accruals basis. This requires the [Gimestimate the amount of revenue expected
to be received based on the historical data of atsaeceived from tests sold since the launch dE&RGen™ and
BREVAGermlus®.
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2017 2016
$ $
4. COST OF SALES
Inventories used 172,070 159,256
Direct labour costs 152,767 199,114
Depreciation expense 71,139 60,249
Inventories written off 96,441 324,441
Total cost of sales 492 417 743,060
1 Inventories written off include $53,856 (2016: 82178) of items that expired during the year.
5. OTHER REVENUE
License fees received - 252,707
Royalties and annuities received - 47,841
Total other revenue - 300,548
2 License fees received in 2016 included $149,88%epfsing income from Applera Corporation
This agreement ended in December 2015.
3 Derived under the Group’s non-coding assertiongpamme that was discontinued during 2015.
6. OTHER INCOME
Net profit on disposal of plant and equipment 52,188 7,132
Research and development tax incentive 253,159 359,803
Interest income 38,765 67,100
Rental income - 58,002
Total other income 344,112 492,037
EXPENSES
Amortisation of intangible assets 63,783 127,564
Depreciation of fixed assets 307,828 262,510
Employee benefits expenses 3,594,936 3,774,770
Operating lease expenses 310,413 312,586
Research and development expenses 418,598 395,539
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2017 2016
$ $
8. INCOME TAX
Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facikax payable
Loss before income tax expense (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 27.50% (20165280) (2,311,052) (2,410,805)
Tax effect amounts which are not deductiiaxable)
in calculating taxable income

Share-based payments expense 33,079 14,318
Research and development tax incentive 108,163 116,800
Other assessable items 81,155 -
Withholding tax expense - 849
Other non-deductible items 1,257 1,450

(2,087,398) (2,277,388)
Difference in overseas tax rates (96,775) (225,070)
Under /(over) provision (75,054) 10,583
Research and development tax credit (69,619) (102,544)
Tax losses not recognised 2,328,846 2,594,419
Income tax expense - -
Net deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Property, plant & equipment 2,802 3,517
Capital raising costs 320,417 531,646
Intangible assets 2,003,505 1,978,065
Provisions 333,103 209,643
Other - -
Total deferred tax assets 2,659,827 2,722,871
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
Prepayments - -
Total deferred tax liabilities - -
Net deferred tax assets on temporary differencebnoaght to account (2,659,827) (2,722,871)

Total net deferred tax assets
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2017 2016
$ $
8. INCOME TAX (cont.)
Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asseblen recognised 80,706,629 74,107,688
Potential tax benefit @ 27.50% (2016: 28.50%) 22,194,323 21,120,691

Subject to the Group continuing to meet the relegtatutory tests, the tax losses are availabl®ffiset against future taxable
income.

At 30 June 2017, the group had a potential tax fiteeéated to tax losses carried forward of $22,823. Such amount includes
net losses of $ 6,452,988 related to subsidiani¢ise United States (U.S.) which would expire a®@ryears starting in 2030. The
remaining tax losses carried forward of $ 15,743 8@ indefinite and are attributable to the Grsugperations in Australia. As
such the total unused tax losses available to thaf; equal $22,194,323.

As at balance date, there are unrecognised taadagith a benefit of approximately $22,194,323 @®21,120,691) that have
not been recognised as a deferred tax asset @rthg. These unrecognised deferred tax assetenijilbe obtained if:

(&) The Group companies derive future assessable inobmaeature and amount sufficient to enable theefiks to be realised:;
(b) The Group companies continue to comply with thedd@mns for deductibility imposed by the law; and

(c) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect@neup companies from realising the benefit.

Tax consolidation legislation

Genetic Technologies Limited and its wholly-ownedsialian subsidiaries implemented the tax conatitid legislation as from
1 July 2003. The accounting policy in relatiorthis legislation is set out in Note 2(j).

The entities in the tax consolidated group haveredtinto a Tax Sharing Agreement which, in theiopi of the Directors, limits
the joint and several liabilities of the wholly-ogghentities in the case of a default by the hetity eBenetic Technologies Limited.

The entities have also entered into a Tax Fundiggedment under which the wholly-owned entitiesyfalbmpensate Genetic
Technologies Limited for any current tax payablsuased and are compensated by Genetic Technologieed for any current
tax receivable and deferred tax assets relatingtsed tax losses or unused tax credits thataarsférred to Genetic Technologies
Limited under the tax consolidation legislationheTfunding amounts are determined by referenche@tounts recognised in
the respective subsidiaries’ financial statements.

The amounts receivable or payable under the TariRgrAgreement are due upon receipt of the fundithgce from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable #feeend of each financial year.

As at 30 June 2017, there are no unrecognised tamypdifferences associated with the Group’s investts in subsidiaries,
as the Group has no liability for additional tamatshould unremitted earnings be remitted (201#. $n

9. LOSS PER SHARE
The following reflects the income and share daglus the calculations of basic and diluted logsspare:

Loss for the year attributable to the owners ofé&erTechnologies Limited (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares usealénlating loss per 2,121,638,888 1,715,214,158
share

Note: None of the 75,102,778 (2016: 53,852,778pngptover the Company’s ordinary shares that wenstanding as at the reporting
date are considered to be dilutive for the purpafesalculating diluted earnings per share.

40



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

2017 Financial Report

Consolidated

41

2017 2016
$ $
10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 10,988,255 11,179,687
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,988,255 11,179,687
Reconciliation of loss for the year
Reconciliation of loss for the year after incometta
net cash flows used in operating activities isoflews:
Loss for the year after income tax (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Adjust for non-cash items
Amortisation and depreciation expenses 371,611 390,074
Impairment of Intangible assets 544,694 -
Share-based payments expense 120,287 50,239
Non-cash rental income - (58,002)
Net (profit) / loss on disposal of plant and equimin (52,188) (7,132)
Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses 175,038 412,579
Adjust for changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receiwable 204,501 84,178
(Increase) / decrease in prepaymantsother assets 103,488 189,178
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 60,120 (342,273)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 62,636 13,286
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating actigtie (6,813,639) (7,726,838)
Financing facilities available
As at 30 June 2017, the following financing
facilities had been negotiated and were
available:
Total facilities
Credit cards 306,128 311,269
Facilities used as at reporting date
Credit cards (12,428) (32,051)
Facilities unused as at reporting date
Credit cards 293,700 279,218
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11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)
Trade receivables 200,837 392,521
Less: provision for doubtful debts - -
Net trade receivables 200,837 392,521
Other receivables 225,435 238,252
Total net current trade and other receivables 426,272 630,773

Note: Trade and other receivables for the Groupgude amounts due in US dollars of USD 153,829
(2016: USD 291,540).

Refer Note 30 for details of aging, interest e credit risks applicable to trade and otherivabées for which, due to their
short-term nature, their carrying value approxirsdteir fair value.

12. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS(CURRENT)

Prepayments 136,923 149,459
Inventories at the lower of cost and net realisablae 76,822 166,942
Performance bond and deposits 3,377 4,209
Total current prepayments and other assets 217,122 320,610
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Laboratory equipment, at cost 1,451,389 1,287,609
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,209,553) (1,056,124)
Net laboratory equipment 241,836 231,485
Computer equipment, at cost 607,165 547,176
Less: accumulated depreciation (523,278) (487,574)
Net computer equipment 83,887 59,602
Office equipment, at cost 167,564 167,564
Less: accumulated depreciation (165,805) (164,527)
Net office equipment 1,759 3,037
Equipment under hire purchase, at cost 594,626 594,626
Less: accumulated depreciation (594,626) (594,626)
Net equipment under hire purchase - -
Leasehold improvements, at cost 462,797 452,487
Less: accumulated depreciation (313,631) (196,472)
Net leasehold improvements 149,166 256,015
Total net property, plant and equipment 476,648 550,139
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening gross carrying amount 3,049,462 2,654,408
Add: additions purchased during the year 234,799 395,054
Less: disposals made during the year (720) -
Closing gross carrying amount 3,283,541 3,049,462
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairmese®s (2,499,323) (2,236,813)
Add: disposals made during the year 258 -
Less: depreciation expense charged (307,828) (262,510)
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairmersges (2,806,893) (2,499,323)
Total net property, plant and equipment 476,648 550,139
Reconciliation of movements in property, plant ancequipment by asset category

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing
Asset category net carrying during year during year expense net carrying

Amount amount

$ $ $ $ $

Laboratory equipment 231,485 163,780 - (153,429) 1,836
Computer equipment 59,602 60,709 (462) (35,962) 8833,
Office equipment 3,037 - - (1,278) 1,759
Leasehold improvements 256,015 10,310 - (117,159) 49,166
Totals 550,139 234,799 (462) (307,828) 476,648
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Patents
Patents, at cost 36,662,592 36,662,592
Less: accumulated amortisation (32,950,533) (32,938,414)
Less: impairment losses (3,712,059) (3,632,338)
Total net patents - 91,840
Other intangible assets
Assets associated with BREVAGEMreast cancer risk test, at cost 1,033,273 1,033,273
Less: accumulated amortisation (568,300) (516,636)
Less: impairment losses (464,973) -
Total net other intangible assets - 516,637
Total net intangible assets - 608,477
Reconciliation of patents
Opening net carrying amount 91,840 116,077
Less: amortisation expense chargetkr below) (12,119) (24,237)
Less: impairment expense (79,721) -
Total net patents - 91,840
Reconciliation of other intangible assets
Opening net carrying amount 516,637 619,964
Less: amortisation expense chargeter below) (51,664) (103,327)
Less: impairment expense (464,973) -
Total net other intangible assets - 516,637

Impairment

Slow growth rates in the market adoption of the BREenplus® breast cancer risk assessment test contributing to
net losses represented an impairment triggeringteVée Group performed an impairment assessmémthw
resulted in a non-cash impairment of the Paterdsoéimer Intangible assets associated with the BRE®MA test

of $544,694.

In order to support this conclusion, the Compangeuntook an impairment assessment as follows:

i.  calculating the value in use of each Intangibletssing a discounted cash flow model. These madeld
cash flows (revenues, expenses and capital expesyfor each asset based on their remaining ubedsl
of approximately 4 years. The cash flows were tfiscounted to net present values at an averadeeof t
most recent rates utilised by other Companiesarirttustry in which the Group operates and have bee
assessed by management to align with the longgesmith profile of the Company. A pre-tax discoustier
of 14.5%, and a growth rate estimate of 2.0% wasl tisroughout the value in use model, and

ii. comparing the resulting value in use of each Irnitdagsset to their respective book values

The Company also performed sensitivity analysig ¢ive value in use calculations by varying the aggtions

used to assess the impact on the valuations.
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont.)
Impairment (cont.)
On consideration of all of these key assumptioasGbmpany, in line with its impairment testing pglhas
concluded that the intangible asset should be folpaired at year end, and that a non-cash impairexense of
$544,694 be recognised at 30 June 2017.
Remaining useful lives
The assets associated with the BREVA®ehreast cancer risk test had a remaining usetulolif4 years as at 30
June 2017.
Disclosure of expenses
The total amortisation expense charged during #ae in respect of intangible assets of $63,783slated in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomeruhdéneading of laboratory and research and dewedat costs.

Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Trade payables 398,291 392,322
Other payables 195,584 270,504
Accrued expenses 304,228 175,157
Total current trade and other payables 898,103 837,983
Note: Trade payables for the Group include amouiis in US dollars of USD 137,154 (2016 USD 178,6ir@) Swiss francs of CHF

380 (2016: CHF 2,702).
Refer Note 30 for details of management of interatst, foreign exchange and liquidity risks apfiledo trade and other payables
for which, due to their short-term nature, theirgiag value approximates their fair value.
16. PROVISIONS(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT)

Current provisions

Annual leave 239,821 223,100
Long service leave 243,411 217,679
Make good * 83,958 53,427
Total current provisions 567,190 494,206
Non-current provisions

Long service leave 56,328 36,145
Make good * 7,632 38,163
Total non-current provisions 63,960 74,308
Total provisions 631,150 568,514

* Make good provision

Genetic Technologies Limited is required to restbeeleased premises situated in Fitzroy, Melbotoribeir original
condition at the end of the lease terms. A proxisias been recognised for the present value @stimated
expenditure required to remove any leasehold ingr@nts. These costs have been capitalised ad paetanst of
leasehold improvements and are amortised ovehtirges of the term of the lease or the usefuldiféhe assets. See
Note 2 (u) for the Group’s other accounting polaielevant to provisions.
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16. PROVISIONS(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT) (cont.)
Reconciliation of annual leave provision
Balance at the beginning of the financial year ,2026 200,957
Add: obligation accrued during the year 183,613 260,434
Less: utilised during the year (166,892) (238,291)
Balance at the end of the financial year 239,821 223,100
Reconciliation of long service leave provision
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 233 354,271
(Less)/ Add: obligation accrued during the year 58,699 (16,904)
Less: utilised during the year (12,784) (83,543)
Balance at the end of the financial year 299,739 253,824
Note: The current provisions for annual leave aodd service leave include a total amount of $42B,@D16: $298,846) in
respect of obligations which, based on historicatlence, the Company estimates will be settled rii@e 12 months from
balance date.

17. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE PROFIT OR LOSS (CURRENT AND

NON-CURRENT)

Debt convertible notes

During the prior financial year $25,000 convertilletes plus capitalised interest were converteal 17091,093
ordinary shares of the Company. The notes werdnatlg issues as secured (debt) notes to existimd) rrew

Australian institutional and wholesale investorgas of a $2,150,000 raising, carrying a 10% cougade, and as
approved at the Annual General Meeting, held oN@gember 2014, became convertible notes which ccadert

into ordinary shares (at a 10.0% discount to tdaypVWAP). These convertible notes carried fregchttd options to
purchase further shares in the Company.
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18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estinmaéeke in determining the fair values of the finahicistruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the finhstatements. To provide an indication aboutdtiability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the group has ifladsts financial instruments into the three lsverescribed under the
Accounting Standards. An explanation of each [éws:

(&) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenfidal assets or liabilities (level 1);

(b) inputs other than prices included within level atthre observable for the asset or liability, eitlisectly or indirectly
(level 2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not lihse observable market data (unobservable ingeig|(3).

No level 1 or level 2 financial assets or lia@ktwere held by the Group as at 30 June 2017 @@l 2

Convertible note
(financial liabilities)

$

Opening balance 1 July 205 (25,000
Conversions to equity 25,000

Closing balance 30 June 2016 -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers imtd &ansfers out of fair value hierarchy levelsiathe end of the reporting
period.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and &#&urrring fair value measurements during the yesathe Company did
not have any fair value assets or liabilities aj@0e 2017.

(i) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2ral level 3 fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations foritarfcial assets and financial liabilities at leastually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directqgrgate their assessment of the fair value of esabt and liability, taking
into account the most recent independent valuatibhe directors determine an assets or liabilitgsie range within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The fair value of financial instruments that are¢ tmaded in an active market is determined usirgat®n techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use ofedisie market data where it is available and rsljitde as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inpurequired to fair value an instrument are obdsdeyahe instrument is
included in level 2. If one or more of the sigréfint inputs is not based on observable market taainstrument is
included in level 3.

(iii) Valuation processes
Convertible note

The value of the Convertible Note outstanding as.aily 2015 was calculated with reference toatefvalue, which
approximates its fair value.
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Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
19. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
I ssued and paid-up capital
Fully paid ordinary shares 122,382,625 115,272,576
Total contributed equity 122,382,625 115,272,576
Movementsin shareson issue
Year ended 30 June 2016 Shares $
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,714,191,631 115,247,128
Add: shares issued as part of the conversion of convertible notes 1,091,093 27,102
Less: transaction costs arising on share issue - (1,654)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,715,282,724 115,272,576
Year ended 30 June 2017 Shares $
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,715,282,724 115,272,576
Add: shares issued as part of private placements 720,000,000 8,049,369
Add: facility fee rebate on previously issued shares - 295,110
Less: transaction costs arising on share issue - (1,234,430)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,435,282,724 122,382,625

* Rebate of a facility fee originally provided to Kentgrove Capital on commencement date of a Standby Equity Placement
Facility Agreement entered into in January 2015 that was paid on expiry of the facility agreement on 21 January 2017 in
accordance with the agreement, representing a reduction in total equity transaction costs associated with the
commencement of the facility.

Termsand conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Company, to particip:
in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares he
Ordinary shares, which have no par value, entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of tl
Company.

Capital management

When managing capital, Management'’s objective is to ensure that the Group continues as a going concern as well as t
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. Management also aims to maintain a capital
structure to reduce the entity’s cost of capital.
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Consolidated
2017 2016
$ $
20. RESERVES
Foreign currency translation 1,288,896 1,419,551
Share-based payments 4,755,597 4,635,310
Total reserves 6,044,493 6,054,861
Reconciliation of foreign currency trandation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,419,551 112,332
Add: net currency translation gain / (loss) (130,655) 1,307,219
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,288,896 1,419,551
Reconciliation of share-based paymentsreserve
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 4,635,310 4,585,071
Add: share-based payments expense 120,287 50,239
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,755,597 4,635,310

Nature and purpose of reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreic

subsidiaries.

Share-based payments reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of share-based payments provided to employees and others providing sim

services as part of their remuneration.

21. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (109,444,248) (100,985,283)
Add: net loss attributable to owners of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,403,826) (8,458,965)
Balance at the end of the financial year (117,848,074) (109,444,248)
22. OPTIONS
As at 30 June 2017, the following options over ordinary shares in the Company were outstanding.
Weighted ave. Weighted ave.
2017 exerciseprice 2016 exerciseprice
Unlisted employee optior{gefer below) 54,736,111 $0.016 33,486,111 $0.022
Unlisted options attached to convertible notes 20,366,667 $0.015 20,366,667 $0.015
75,102,778 $0.016 53,852,778 $0.019

On 30 November 2001, the Directors of the Company established a Staff Share Plan. On 19 November 2008, ti
shareholders of the Company approved the introduction of a new Employee Option Plan. Under the terms of the respect
Plans, the Directors of the Company may grant options over ordinary shares in Genetic Technologies Limited to executive
consultants and employees of the Group. The options, which are granted at nil cost, are not transferable and are not qu
on the ASX. As at 30 June 2017, there was 6 executive and 4 employees who held options that had been granted undel
Plans. Options granted under the Plans carry no rights to dividends and no voting rights.

49



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2017 Financial Report

22. OPTIONS (cont.)

The movements in the number of options grantednthéePlans are as follows:

Weighted ave. Weighted ave.

2017 exercise price 2016 exercise price
Unlisted employee options
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 33,486,111 $0.022 3,875,000 $0.140
Add: options granted during the year 22,750,000 $0.010 33,736,111 $0.022
Less: options exercised during the year - - - -
Less: options forfeited during the year (1,500,000) $0.049 (4,125,000) $0.136
Balance at the end of the financial year 54,736,111 $0.016 33,486,111 $0.022

There were no options exercised under the EmplOy®n Plan during the year ended 30 June 201 76(20i).

The numbers of options outstanding as at 30 Juh@ B ASX code, including the respective datesxpfrg and exercise
prices, are tabled below (refer Note 24 for furihésrmation). The options tabled below are nstelidl on ASX.

i . Weighted ave. Weighted ave.
Option description 2017 exercise price 2016 exercise price
Unlisted employee options
GTGAA (expiring 31 May 2019) - - 250,000 $0.040
GTGAD (expiring 14 September 2020) 250,000 $0.058 1,000,000 $0.058
GTGAD (expiring 24 November 2020) 24,236,111 $0.020 24,236,111 $0.020
GTGAD (expiring 31 January 2021) - - 500,000 $0.039
GTGAD (expiring 31 March 2021) 7,500,000 $0.020 7,500,000 $0.020
GTGAD (expiring 16 February 2022) 22,750,000 $0.010 - -

54,736,111 $0.016 33,486,111 $0.022
Unlisted options attached to convertible notes
GTGAC (expiring 2 December 2018) 20,366,667 $0.015 20,366,667 $0.015
Balance at the end of the financial year 75,102,778 $0.016 53,852,778 $0.019
Exercisable at the end of the financial year 36,234,722 $0.017 20,450,000 $0.015

The weighted average remaining contractual lif@mtfons outstanding as at 30 June 2017 was 3.28 y2a16: 3.70
years).
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23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified a sole operating segmen¢ported that is consistent with the internabréipg provided to the

chief operating decision maker and is aligned ¢éoathe major revenue stream.

The Groups operating segment is summarised asvillo

Business segments

Revenues and income

Segment Sales Other Totals Profit / (loss)
$ $ $ $
Operations 2017 518,506 344,112 862,618 (8,403,826)
2016 824,586 792,585 1,617,171 (8,458,965)
Assets Liabilities Amortisation  Purchases of
Segment /depreciation  Equipment
$ $ $ $
Operations 2017 12,108,297 (1,529,253) (371,611) 4,720
2016 13,289,686 (1,406,497) (390,074) 395,054

Geographic information

Australia — is the home country of the parent entity and |twation of the Company’s genetic testing andnkieg

operations.
USA-is the home of Phenogen Sciences Inc. and GereJgrporation.

Switzerland- is the home of GeneType AG.

Geographic information

Revenues and income

Sales Other Totals Profit/(Loss)
$ $ $ $
Australia 2017 18,215 344,112 362,327 (7,000,994)
2016 220 792,585 792,805 (4,241,451)
USA 2017 500,291 - 500,291 (1,371,001)
2016 824,366 - 824,366 (4,197,368)
Other 2017 - - - (31,831)
2016 - - - (20,146)
Totals 2017 518,506 344,112 862,618 (8,403,826)
2016 824,586 792,585 1,617,171 (8,458,965)
Assets Liabilities Amortisation  Purchases of
/depreciation  Equipment
$ $ $ $
Australia 2017 11,473,094 (1,291,529) (362,677) , 093
2016 12,553,539 (1,199,257) (379,944) 382,893
USA 2017 632,419 (233,301) (8,934) 11,703
2016 733,168 (202,200) (10,130) 12,161
Other 2017 2,784 (4,423) - -
2016 2,979 (5,040 - -
Totals 2017 12,108,297 (1,529,253) (371,611) 231,79
2016 13,289,686 (1,406,497) (390,074) 395,054
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23. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont.)

Additional segment disclosures
Other revenues and incorimeludes interest received of $38,765 (2016: $6%),09

Expensefcludes employee benefits expenses of $3,5948BK6: $3,774,770).

Assets includes cash of $10,988,255 (2016: $11,179,687).

Liabilities includes trade and other payables of $898,1036(28837,983) and provisions of $631,150 (2016: $568.
Included in the above figures are the followingeisegment balances and transactions:

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $
Loan payable (USA) and loan receivable (Australia) 348,835 512,816
Foreign exchange gain (USA) and foreign exchangg (Australia) 776,295 1,750,759
Cost of sales (USA) and sales (Australia) 74,762 91,896

Segment products and locations

The principal geographic segment is Australia, \ith Company’s headquarters being located in Meitzoin the State of
Victoria however the key sales activities take plecthe USA.

Major customers

During the years ended 30 June 2017 & 30 June 2@¥6 was no customer from whom the Group generatgshues
representing more than 10% of the total consolileggenue from operatios outstanding receivables.

24. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Employee option plan

On 30 November 2001, the Directors of the Compastpbtished a Staff Share Plan. On 19 November ,20@8
shareholders of the Company approved the intraolucti a new Employee Option Plan. Under the tevhike respective
Plans, the Directors may, at their discretion, gagtions over the ordinary shares in the Genatichiologies Limited to
executives, consultants, employees, and formerB@tutive Directors, of the Group.

During the year the following options over ordinahares were granted pursuant the Employee OponaPno cost;

i. 1,250,000 options (2016: 2,000,000 options) toralrer of employees of the Company’s US Subsidiary,
Phenogen Sciences Inc. The options vest basedmmatket performance conditions (requirement toaiem
employed by the Company) in three tranches commgrani the date of the 2017 Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company and then at each of the 12Zhthonth anniversaries thereafter (2016: threaleq
tranches after 12 months, 24 months, and 36 mdrtthrsedate of grant, respectively). The fair valdieach
option granted is estimated by an external valgergia Black-Scholes option-pricing model, withuaeptions

as follows
2017 2016

Grant Date 17 Feb 2017 1 April 2016 25 Nov 2015
Options issued 1,250,000 500,000 1,500,000
Dividend yield - - -
Historic volatility and expected volatility 60% 80% 80%
Option exercise price $0.010 $0.039 $0.058
Weighted average exercise price $0.010 $0.039 80.05
Risk-free interest rate 2.19% 1.93% 2.22%
Expected life of an option 4.5 years 4.3 years yéds
Model used Black-Scholes|  Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

As at 30 June 2017, there were 4 employees whoopdilons that had been granted under the Plan.
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24. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (cont.)
(a) Employee option plan (cont.)

The expected price volatility is based on the histeolatility (based on the remaining life of thptions), adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility dupublicly available information.

i. 21,500,000 options (2016: 31,736,111l) to a nunalb&MP. The options vest based on non-market
performance conditions (requirement to remain eggadoy the Company) in three tranches commencing on
the date of the 2017 Annual General Meeting (AGMhe Company and then at each of the 12 and 24tmon
anniversaries thereafter (2016: market relatedngsbndition of share price growth, whereby théas are
exercisable at any time after the vesting conditiare met for a period of up to 5 years after gngniThe
vesting conditions that must be met before a tramflOptions shall vest, namely the 3 month VWAW®/Gich
the shares of the Company must be trading on the A& $0.05, $ 0.10 and $0.20). The fair valueaxth
option granted is estimated by an external valgergia Black-Scholes option-pricing model (2016:nt%o
Carlo simulation analysis), with assumptions alo¥es$

2017 2016
Grant Date 17 Feb 2017 1 April 2016 25 Nov 2015
Options issued 21,500,000 7,500,000 24,236,111
Dividend yield - - -
Historic volatility and expected volatility 60% 80% 80%
Option exercise price $0.010 $0.020 $0.020
Weighted average exercise price $0.010 $0.020 $0.02
Risk-free interest rate 2.19% 1.93% 2.22%
Expected life of an option 4.5 years 4.3 years yédrs
Model used Black-Scholes| Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

Modification of share-based payment arrangements

In February 2017, the Company modified the vestingditions of the 31,736,111 options granted toFKM
during 2016 from that of market related share ergrowth to non-market conditions of continuing
employment with the Company, vesting in two equah¢hes on the 30 June 3017 and 30 June 2018th&lt o
vesting conditions attached to these option, iriodOption exercise price and expiry date remained
unchanged. The fair value of the options at the dathe modification was $358,131 less than thgiral fair
value, primarily as a result of the reduced shaimt date of revaluation, as follows;

Fair Value Post Modification| Fair Value Pre Modification
Grant Date 1 April 2016 25 Nov 201H 1 April 2016  R6v 2015
Options issued 7,500,000 24,236,111 7,500,000 BA23
Dividend yield - - - -
Historic volatility and expected volatility 60% 60% 80% 80%
Option exercise price $0.020 $0.020 $0.020 $0.020
Weighted average exercise price $0.020 $0.020 $0.02 $0.020
Risk-free interest rate 2.08% 2.02% 1.93% 2.22%
Expected life of an option 3.6 years 3.3 years yé&8s 4.5 years
Model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholgs Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

In line with the relevant accounting standards rékiction in fair value of the options will not tEcognised, with
the expense of the original option grant to coritaube recognised as if the terms had not beeifiethd
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24. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (cont.)

(b) Expenses arising from share-based payment traastions

Total expenses arising from share-based paymersiaitions recognised during the period as pampfayee benefit
expense were as follows:

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $

Options issued under employee option plan 120,287 50,239
Total 120,287 50,239
25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating lease expenditure commitments
Minimum operating lease payments
- not later than one year 227,992 220,486
- later than one year but not later than five years 35,676 248,481
- later than five years - -
Total minimum operating lease payments 263,668 468,967

As at 30 June 2017, the above operating leasesddtathe following premises that are currentlgupied by the Group:

Minimum
Location Landlord Use Date of expiry payments
of lease
®)

60-66 Hanover Street )
Fitzroy, Victoria 3065 Australia Crude Pty. Ltd. Office / laboratory 31 August 2018 248,481
9115 Harris Corners Parkway, Suite 320 New Boston Harris Office 31 October 2017 15,187
Charlotte, North Carolina 28269 USA Corners LLC

Total 263,668

Apart from the above, there were no other commitsmencontingencies as at 30 June 2017.

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $
26. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit and assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of:
Audit? 325,972 334,560
Audit related 107,451
Other audit firms in respect of:
Audit of the Financial Reports of subsidiaries 4,070 5,868
437,493 340,428

Total remuneration in respect of audit services

1 Audit fees consist of services that would normadiyprovided in connection with statutory & regwoiat filings or
engagements, including services that generally tirdyindependent accountant can reasonably provide.
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Ultimate parent

Genetic Technologies Limited is the ultimate Augraparent company. As at the date of this Repartshareholder
controls more than 50% of the issued capital ofdbmpany.

Transactions within the Group and with other related parties

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the only tctioss between entities within the Group and otledaited parties
occurred, are as listed below. Except where natédmounts were charged on similar to market $esimd at commercial
rates.

Phenogen Sciences Inc.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, Phenogen 8sidnc, a subsidiary, purchased testing servigas fGenetic
Technologies Corporation Pty. Ltd., another subsydat a cost of $74,762 (2016: $91,676). Thissiation is eliminated
on consolidation.

Debt convertible notes

During the year ended 30 June 2015 the Companiljsiakthe raising of $2,150,000 via the issue disted secured (debt)
notes to existing and new Australian institutiomadl wholesale investors. The debt notes carri€ti@®d.coupon rate, and
as approved at the Annual General Meeting, hel@iNovember 2014, became convertible notes whicidamonvert
into ordinary shares (at a 10.0% discount to tldaypVWAP). These convertible notes also carry &gached options to
purchase further shares in the Company.

$125,000 of these convertible notes were issuedholder associated with Dr Lindsay Wakefield, anpany director at
the time of issue, on the same terms and conditisrigher note holders, all of which were convedigthg the year ended
30 June 2015. The 8,333,333 share options attdaohibdse convertible notes remain unexercisdukagnd of the year.

There were no transactions with parties relatedep Management Personnel during the year other thaindisclosed
above

Details of Directors and Key Management Personnelsaat balance date

Directors Executives

Dr Malcolm R. BrandorfNon-Executive Chairman) Mr Kevin Fischer(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive Director Ms Diana Newpor{Quality and Business Operations Director)

& Chief Executive Officer) Dr Richard Allman(Scientific Director)

Mr Grahame Leonard ANNon-Executive) Mr Chris SaundergVice President, Sales and Marketing — Phenogen)
Dr Lindsay WakefieldNon-Executive) Dr Susan GrosSenior Medical Director — Phenogen)

Dr Paul KasiarfNon-Executive)
Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Short-term employee benefits 1,533,457 1,350,986
Post-employment benefits 101,320 104,081
Share-based payments 121,269 49,445
Other long-term benefits 61,594 28,552
Termination benefits - 53,795
Total remuneration of Key Management Personnel 1,817,640 1,586,859
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28. SUBSIDIARIES

The following diagram is a depiction of the Grosusture as at 30 June 2017.

Genetic Technologies Limited

100% 100% 100%

100%

100%

100%

Genetic
GeneType RareCellect GeneType Technologies Phenogen GeneType
Corporation Pty. Ltd. Pty. Ltd. Corporation Sciences Inc. AG
Pty. Ltd.
Name of Group company Incorporation details Group nterest (%) Net carrying value ($)
2017 2016 2017 2016

Entities held directly by parent

GeneType Pty. Ltd. 5 September 1990

(Dormant) Victoria, Australia 100% 100% - -

Genetic Technologies Corporation Pty. Ltd. 11 October 1996

(Genetic testing) N.S.W., Australia 100% 100% 2 2

RareCellect Pty. Ltd. 7 March 2001

(Dormant) N.S.W., Australia 100% 100% 10 10

GeneType AG * 13 February 1989

(Dormant) Zug, Switzerland 100% 100% - 1,350

GeneType Corporation 18 December 1989

(Dormant) California, U.S.A. 100% 100% - -

Phenogen Sciences Inc. 28 June 2010

(BREVAGen™) Delaware, U.S.A. 100% 100% 11,006 11,006
Total carrying value 11,018 12,368

* At 30 June 2017, GeneType AG was placed into nesilvoluntary liquidation.
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29. PARENT ENTITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary financial information

The individual financial statements for the parentity, Genetic Technologies Limited, disclose dlggregate amounts set
out in the following table.

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $
Balance sheet
Current assets
10,891,441 11,208,824
Total assets
11,774,645 12,989,540
Current liabilities
1,169,270 1,046,119
Total liabilities
1,233,230 13,220,062
Equity
Contributed equity 122,382,625 115,272,576
Reserves (share-based payments) 2,940,920 2,820,633
Accumulated losses (126,068,840) (118,323,731)
Total equity (745,295) (230,522)
Total comprehensive loss (7,745,109) (14,849,331)

Related party information

As at 30 June 2017, an amount of $58,148,587 (2$36,788,897) was receivable by the Company framvatrious
subsidiaries and associates. As at the same afatemount of $11,403,841 (2016: $12,099,634) waslkpa by the
Company to its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All suohns are unsecured, generally interest free lag tare no fixed
terms of repayment.

Financial risk management

In assessing the recoverability of intercompanyeikables, Genetic Technologies Limited, the pammtity, raises a
provision for diminution to ensure that the cargyemmount of these receivables does not exceedethamgible assets of
the subsidiaries. The balance of the provisiort 8 dune 2017 was $57,492,658 (2016:$55,931,892).

Contingent liabilities and commitments of the parehentity
As at the date of this Report, the parent entitydfacontingent liabilities or other commitments.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety ofaficial risks such as credit risk, market riskl@iding foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity riskhélfGroup’s overall risk management program focosethe unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potéatizerse effects on the financial performancéefGroup. The Group
uses different methods to measure the differerdastyqf risk to which it is exposed. These methodfude sensitivity
analysis in the case of foreign exchange, inteag¢stand aging analysis for credit risk.

Risk management is managed by the Executive undielarice provided by the Board of Directors via Atadit
Committee, which provides guidance for overall nsknagement, as well as policies covering spemiées, such as credit
risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate riskhe Committee identifies and evaluates finandsits in close
cooperation with the Group’s executive management.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprésish and cash equivalents. The Group also hesfotancial assets
and liabilities, such as trade receivables andlgagawhich arise directly from its operations.

The Group does not typically enter into derivatiemsactions, such as interest rate swaps or fdrevarency contracts. It
is, and has been throughout the period under revtevGroup’s policy that no trading in financiakiruments shall be
undertaken. The main risks arising from the Grsdjpiancial instruments are credit risk exposui@®ign currency risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The polgi®r managing each of these risks are summarisged/b

Details of the significant accounting policies améthods adopted, including the criteria for rectignj the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and ss®eme recognised, in respect of each class afidial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disséd in Note 2.

The Group holds the following financial instruments

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $

Financial assets

Cash at bank / on hand 10,988,255 11,179,687
Trade and other receivables 426,272 630,773
Performance bond and deposits 3,376 4,209
Total financial assets 11,417,903 11,814,669
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 898,103 837,983
Total financial liabilities 898,103 837,983

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is managed on a Group baSi®dit risk arises from cash and cash equivalend deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credjtosures to customers, including outstandingvaisles and committed
transactions. The trade & other receivables balahgear end includes an accrual estimate of revémbe collected from
the sale of BREVAGEN and BREVAGeplus® tests. Recoverability of accrued revenues fos testformed is regularly
monitored by management. Other receivables repgraseounts accrued for which reimbursement will pgliad for from
the Australian Taxation Authority under the Goveemts Research & Development grant. The maximum sexps to
credit risk at 30 June 2017 in relation to eaclsclaf recognsied financial asset is the carryinguarnof those assets, as
indicated in the balance sheet.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

Financial assets included on the balance sheefptitantially subject the Group to concentrationciedit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and tradeivables. In accordance with the guidelingb®iGroup’s Short Term
Investment Policy, the Group minimises this conegian of risk by placing its cash and cash eqeivis with financial
institutions that maintain superior credit ratigsorder to limit the degree of credit exposureor Banks and financial
institutions, only independently-rated parties vatminimum rating of “A-1" are accepted. The Grdwgs also established
guidelines relative to credit ratings, diversifioatand maturities that seek to maintain safetyligpitlity. The Group does
not require collateral to provide credit to its tousers. Once a BREVAG&h or BREVAGemlus® test has been
performed, historically a patient elected to self-pr where applicable seek healthcare providempay on receipt of the
outcome of the test. The nature of this revenuegmtion cycle increases the risk of credit expesuA change to the
billing policy was implemented on 1 April 2017, whby the test is now only provided on a patientz&y basis in an
attempt to, amongst other things, mitigate thik. riehe Group has not entered into any transactibat qualify as a
financial derivative instrument.

The trade receivables balance is reflective ofohitsdl collection rates which are monitored on againg basis and
adjusted accordingly based on changing collectiwh test data. As at 30 June 2017, the balanceeoGtioup’s total
accrued net trade receivables was $200,837 (2@92, %21 (refer Note 11).

Credit risk further arises in relation to finanajgiarantees given by the Group to certain partiesspect of obligations of
its subsidiaries. Such guarantees are only prdvidexceptional circumstances.

An analysis of the aging of trade and other red#@sis provided below:

Consolidated

2017 2016
$ $

Net trade and other receivables

Current (less than 30 days) 426,272 630,773
31 days to 60 days - -
61 days to 90 days - -
Greater than 90 days - -

Total net trade and other receivaliéste 11) 426,272 630,773

Note: Given the nature of the trade receivableshieremaining business all amounts are considerbd current.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposefibreign currency exchange risk, primarily witlspect to the US

dollar, through financial assets and liabilitie$.is the Group’s policy not to hedge these tratisas as the exposure is
considered to be minimal from a consolidated opmratperspective. Further, as the Group incuremsgs which are

payable in US dollars, the financial assets thahatd in US dollars provide a natural hedge ferGnoup.

Foreign exchange risk arises from planned futurencercial transactions and recognised assets dnilitits denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functionatrency and net investments in foreign operatiofke risk is measured
using sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecastin

The Group has a Foreign Exchange Management Paliigh was developed to establish a formal framewamki
procedures for the efficient management of thenfife risks that impact on Genetic Technologies itéththrough its
activities outside of Australia, predominantly retUnited States. The policy governs the way iiclwthe financial assets
and liabilities of the Group that are denominatedareign currencies are managed and any riskiassd with that
management are identified and addressed. Undgmotley, which is updated on a regular basis asuaiistances dictate,
the Group generally retains in foreign currencyyaifficient funds to meet the expected expenditumethat currency.
Surplus funds are converted into Australian dolessnd when deemed appropriate by the Board suttation with the
CFO.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group held the followingaficial assets and liabilities that were denomihaieforeign
currencies:

Consolidated Year UsD EUR CHF

Financial assets

Cash at bank / on hand 2017 6,203,335 30,852 -
2016 5,108,964 32,767 -

Total financial assets 2017 6,203,335 30,852 -
2016 5,108,964 32,767 -

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 2017 99,540 - -
2016 96,069 - -

Total financial liabilities 2017 99,540 - -
2016 96,069 - -

Notes: USD - United States dollars EUR — European euros CHF — Swiss francs

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Austrdiidiar / US dollar exchange rate strengthened B%63from 0.7441 at
the beginning of the year to 0.7686 at the enti®iear.

Based on the financial instruments held at 30 204&, had the Australian dollar weakened/ stremgttidoy 10% against
the US dollar with all other variables held constahe Group’s loss for the year would have bee@2&80 lower/
$722,000 higher (2016: loss $748,000 lower / |&&2%00 higher), mainly as a result of changehénvalues of cash and
cash equivalents which are denominated in US doker detailed in the above tables.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Market risk (cont.)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises in i@hato its short-term deposits with various finahdnstitutions. If rates
were to decrease, the Group may generate leseshrevenue from such deposits. However, givendlaively short
duration of such deposits, the associate riskasively minimal.

The Group has a Short Term Investment Policy whiels developed to manage the Group’s surplus caghcash
equivalents. In this context, the Group adoptsualgnt approach that is tailored to cash foregasiter than seeking high
returns that may compromise access to funds asvaed they are required. Under the policy, the @rdaposits its
surplus cash in a range of deposits / securities different time frames and with different indituns in order to diversify
its portfolio and minimise risk.

On a monthly basis, Management provides the Boaild avdetailed list of all cash and cash equivaleshowing the
periods over which the cash has been depositedhatime and credit rating of the institution holdihg deposit and the
interest rate at which the funds have been deosite

At 30 June 2017, if interest rates had changed/b$0G-basis points from the year-end rates, witlothler variables held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year would Haeen $12,000 lower / higher (2016: loss $20,00Gtalshigher), as a
result of higher / lower interest income from castd cash equivalents. Consolidated equity forGhsup would have
been $12,000 higher / lower (2016: $20,000 highewér) mainly as a result of an increase / deergashe fair value of
cash and cash equivalents.

The exposure to interest rate risks and the effedtiterest rates of financial assets and liagdjtiboth recognised and
unrealised, for the Group is as follows:

Year Floating rate Fixed rate Carrying Weighted ave. Ave. maturity
amount effective rate Period
Consolidated $ $ $ % Days
Financial assets
Cash at bank / on hand 2017 2,468,730 - 2,468,730 75% At call
2016 3,952,078 - 3,952,078 1.98% At call
Performance bond / deposits 2017 - 3,376 3,376 - At call
2016 - 4,209 4,209 - At call
Totals 2017 2,468,730 3,376 2,472,106
2016 3,952,078 4,209 3,956,287

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value 2017 - - - - -
through profit or loss
2016 - - - - -

Note The Company holds the balance of its casiominterest bearing bank accounts.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintagnsufficient cash and cash equivalents and thiéahildy of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credilitfesj such as its hire purchase and credit cacditfes. The Group
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoringrdcast and actual cash flows and, wherever pessidtching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabdgi Due to the dynamic nature of the underlyingjiasses, Management
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keepimgpmmitted credit lines available. Surplus funds generally only
invested in instruments that are tradeable in kigiluid markets. Refer note 2(a) for further infation on the material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt onGoeenpany’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Liquidity risk (cont.)

A balanced view of cash inflows and outflows affegthe Group is summarised in the table below:

Year <6 months 6to12months 1to5years > 5 years Totals
Consolidated $ $ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash at bank / on hand 2017 10,988,255 10,988,255
2016 11,179,687 11,179,687
Trade and other receivables 2017 426,272 426,272
2016 630,773 630,773
Performance bond and deposits 2017 3,376 3,376
2016 4,209 - 4,209
Total financial assets 2017 11,417,903 - 11,417,903
2016 11,814,669 - 11,814,669
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2017 898,103 - 898,103
2016 837,983 - - 837,983
Total financial liabilities 2017 898,103 - - 898,103
2016 837,983 - - 837,983
Net maturity 2017 10,519,800 - - 10,519,800
2016 10,976,686 - - 10,976,686

The Group had access to the following undrawn bamg facility as at 30 June 2017:

Facility limit

Nature of facility $

Credit card facility

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events which hageroed after balance date.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Directors:

(a) the Financial Statements and accompanying notes set out on pages 24 to 62 are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

(ii) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable; and

Note 2 confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as required by

section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

This Declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

DR. MALCOLM R. BRANDON
Chairman

Melbourne, 29 August 2017
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Genetic Technologies Limited for the year ended 30 June 2017, |
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(@) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Genetic Technologies Limited and the entities it controlled during the

period.
Sam Lobley Melbourne
Partner 29 August 2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers

) PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
2 Riverside Quay, SOUTHBANK VIC 3006, GPO Box 1331, MELBOURNE VIC 3001
T: 6138603 1000, F: 61 3 8603 1999, www.pwc.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Genetic Technologies Limited

Report on the audit of the financial report

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Genetic Technologies Limited (the Company) and its controlled
entities (together, the consolidated entity or the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

a) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and
of its financial performance for the year then ended

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The consolidated entity financial report comprises:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2017

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income / (loss) for the year then ended
o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies

e the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 2(a) in the financial report, which indicates that the consolidated entity
incurred a total comprehensive loss of $8,534,481 and had net cash outflows from operations of
$6,813,639 during the year ended 30 June 2017. The consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern is dependent upon its successful completion and implementation of the results of the
strategic review, which was announced on 25 August 2017. These conditions, along with other

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
2 Riverside Quay, SOUTHBANK VIC 3006, GPO Box 1331, MELBOURNE VIC 3001
T: 6138603 1000, F: 61 38603 1999, www.pwc.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.



matters set forth in Note 2(a) in the financial report, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt about the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our audit approach

An audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial report.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial report as a whole, taking into account the geographic and management
structure of the consolidated entity, its accounting processes and controls and the industry in which it
operates.

The Group operates in the biotechnology industry, and is a molecular diagnostics provider that offers
predictive testing and assessment tools to help medical professionals proactively manage patients’
health. The Group owns a portfolio of proprietary technology and patents with applications in
different stages between development and commercialisation. The Group’s genetic testing operations
are carried out in Australia while sales and marketing of the products are largely based in the United
States.

Key audit
matters

Materiality

Audit scope

Materiality Audit scope Key audit matters

e For the purpose of our auditwe e Our audit focused on where the e Amongst other relevant topics,

used overall materiality of consolidated entity made we communicated the following

$420,000, which represents subjective judgements; for key audit matters to the Audit

approximately 5% of the example, significant accounting Committee:

consolidated entity’s total loss estimates involving assumptions — Material uncertainty related

from operations before income and inherently uncertain future to going concern

tax expe.nse. ) events. ) — Impairment of BREVAGen
e We applied this threshold, e The accounting processes are intangible assets

together with qualitative structured around a Group-wide . :

considerations, to determine the finance function at the head * They are further described in

the Key audit matters section of

scope of our audit and the office in Melbourne, where our our report, except for the matter
nature, timing and extent of our procedures were performed. which is déscribed in the
audit procedures and to »  Our approach had regard for the Material uncertainty related to
evaluate the effect of ; quality of the control going concern section.
misstatements on the financial environment and deficiencies
report as a whole. identified, which included lack

e We chose loss from operations of segregation of duties. This is
before income tax expense, not unusual for a Group of this
which is a commonly accepted size and structure.
benchmark.

e We utilised a 5% threshold
based on our professional
judgement, noting it is within
the range of commonly
acceptable thresholds.



Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report for the current period. The key audit matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Further, any commentary on the outcomes of a
particular audit procedure is made in that context. In addition to the matter described in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

Impairment of BREVAGen intangible assets

(Refer to note 15, Intangible Assets)

Slow growth rates in the market adoption of the
BREVAGenplus breast cancer risk assessment test
contributing to net losses represented an
impairment triggering event. The Group performed
an impairment assessment, which resulted in a
non-cash impairment of the Patents and other
Intangible assets associated with the BREVAGen
test of $544,694.

The Group performed the impairment assessment
in accordance with its accounting policy, as
disclosed in note 2(s) to the financial report.

Given the level of judgement involved by the Group
in preparing the model that assessed impairment
and the magnitude of the impairment charge
recognised, we determined that this was a key audit
matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We considered the appropriateness of the methodology
applied by the consolidated entity in performing the
impairment assessment, including the process
undertaken and rationale for supporting the impairment
recognised.

Our procedures over the model included:

¢ Evaluating the basis of preparation of the model
by comparing the model to requirements under
Australian Accounting Standards.

¢ Analysing the appropriateness of the forecasted
revenues and expenses in the model by
comparison with historical sales of the
consolidated entity’s BREVAGen and
BREVAGenplus tests.

e Benchmarking weighted average cost of capital
used in the model to market data of comparable
companies where available.

¢ Developing an understanding of the key drivers
of the cash flow forecasts through discussion
with members of management with scientific
knowledge and expertise outside of the finance
function.

e Performing tests of the mathematical accuracy
of the model.

We assessed the consolidated entity’s sensitivity analysis
and developed our own independent sensitivities by
examining the outcomes of a range of possibilities within
forecasted sales assumptions to assess the conclusions
reached.

We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the
financial report in this respect.




Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information included in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017 comprises the Directors’ Report (but does not include
the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report. We expect other information to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report, including Chairman and CEO’s message, Board of Directors, Senior Management, Molecular
Diagnostics and Cancer.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other information not yet received as identified above, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors and use
our professional judgement to determine the appropriate action to take.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the
consolidated entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the consolidated entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors _responsibilities/arl.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.




Report on the remuneration report

Our opinion on the remuneration report

We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 11 to 20 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Genetic Technologies Limited for the year ended 30 June
2017 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

it

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Sam Lobley
Melbourne
29 August 2017
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Additional information required by the Listing Ralef the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) aoddisclosed
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The informatioovided is current as at 22 August 2017.

Home Exchange

The Company’s ordinary shares are quoted on thérdlias Securities Exchange. The home exchandéelbourne,
Victoria. The ASX code for the Company’s ordinalyares is GTG. The Company also has a listing ekILd
American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) on the NatioAalsociation of Securities Dealers Automated Qimrat
(NASDAQ) Capital Market in the U.S.A. Each ADR cprises 150 fully paid ordinary shares and tradesutite ticker
symbol GENE.

Distribution of Equity Securities
The number of shareholders as at 22 August 20hKedaby size of holding, in each class of sharesarfollows:

Range of shares Number of holders Number of shares
1-1,000 294 167,776
1,001 - 5,000 703 2,089,804
5,001 - 10,000 403 3,327,725
10,001 - 100,000 1,069 42,800,650
100,001 - 9,999,999,999 749 2,386,896,769
Total 2,966  2,435,282,724

The number of shareholders holding less than aKetable parcel” of shares (being 71,429 share2)3@85. The total
number of shares held by these shareholders orug@shwas 33,232,687.

Twenty Largest Shareholders
The names of the twenty largest registered shatetobf the Company’s ordinary shares as at 22 sa21 7 are:

Rank Name Number of Percentage held
Shares

1 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 1,078,629 81.26

2 MR JIMMY THOMAS + MS IVY RUTH PONNIAH 18,200,032 0.75

3 SECURITY & EQUITY RESOURCES LIMITED 15.073.506 6a.
MR ROGER LETTS DAWKINS + MR WAYNE COX

4 SIMMUNOGENETICS R FDN WA A/C> 12,016,667 0.49
S H RAYBURN NOMINEES PTY LTD <S H RAYBURN SUPER

AV 12,000,000 0.49

6 MR WARWICK WRIGHT 9,250,000 0.38

7 SMART INVESTMENTS LIMITED 8,936,471 0.37

8  WAKKO ENTERPRISES PTY LTD <L&S WAKEFIELD S/F A/C> 7.754.763 0.32

9 MR JERRY HUI KANG GAO 7,000,000 0.29

10 HEPTON INVESTMENT PTY LTD <HONG CHEN FAMILY A/C> 6,900,000 0.28

11 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 6,347,512 0.26

12 IRWIN BIOTECH NOMINEES P/L <BIOA A/C> 6,200,000 0.25

13 MR WARREN DWAYNE JONES 6,000,000 0.25

13 LENFAM PTY LTD <SUPER FUND A/C> 6,000,000 0.25

15 MR JACK YUEJIN LI 5,500,000 0.23

16 MRS LESLEY LODGE 5 300,000 0.22

17 IRWIN BIOTECH NOMINEES PTY LTD <BIOA A/C> 500000 0.21

18 MJGD NOMINEES PTY LTD <BSMI A/C> 4,849,129 0.20
SAMBOR NOMINEES PTY LTD <SUSANNE & MONIAK

19 Aoon Ao 4,600,000 0.19
BRUCE BARTLETT SUPERANNUATION PTY LTD <BRUCE

20 BARTLETT SUPER A/C> 4,500,000 0.18
Totals 2 130,284,709 87.49
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RESTRICTED SECURITIES
As at 22 August 2017 there were no ordinary shitwatswere subject to escrow arrangements with tragainy.

VOTING RIGHTS
Article 17 of the Company’s Constitution stipulatee voting rights of Members as follows:

“Subject to any rights or restrictions for the tilmeing attached to any class or classes of shatewadhis Constitution:

@) On the show of hands every person present in thacitg of a Member or proxy, attorney or represtvda
(or in more than one of these capacities) has otes end

(b) On a poll every person present who is a Membermxyp attorney or representative has:
i. For each fully paid share that the person holdgpresents; one vote; and
ii. For each share other than a fully paid share tleperson holds or represents: that portion of

one vote that the amount paid (not credited) onstieres bears to the total amount paid and
payable on the share (excluding amounts credited).”
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